
Drinking Water 
Board Packet 

January 8, 2016



Agenda  



  

 

195 North 1950 West • Salt Lake City, UT                                                                                     
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 144830 • Salt Lake City, UT  84114-4830                                                               

Telephone (801) 536-4200 • Fax (801) 536-4211 • T.D.D.  (801) 903-3978                                                           
www.deq.utah.gov 

Printed on 100% recycled paper 

State of Utah  
 
 
 

GARY R. HERBERT 
Governor 

 
SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

Department of 
Environmental Quality 

 
Alan Matheson 

Executive Director 
 

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER 
Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E. 

Director 

 

Drinking Water Board 
Paul Hansen, P.E., Chair 
Betty Naylor, Vice-Chair 

Brett Chynoweth 
Tage Flint 

Roger G. Fridal 
Alan Matheson 

David L. Sakrison 
 David Stevens, Ph.D. 
   Mark Stevens, M.D. 

  Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E.  
Executive Secretary 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD MEETING  
January 8, 2016 - 1:00 pm 

Multi Agency State Office Building – Room 1015 
195 North 1950 West 

Salt Lake City, Utah  84116 
 

Ken Bousfield’s Cell Phone #: (801) 674-2557 
 
 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Hansen 
 
2. Roll Call – Ken Bousfield 
 
3. Approval of the Minutes: 

A.  November 13, 2015 
B.  November 25, 2015 

 
4. Financial Assistance Committee Report 

A. Status Report – Michael Grange 
B. Project Priority List – Michael Grange 
C. SRF Applications 

i. FEDERAL: 
a)  Bear River WCD – Julie Cobleigh 
b)  Fairfield – Rich Peterson 
c)  Eagle Mountain – Rich Peterson 
d) Taylor West Weber WID – Rich Peterson 

 
5.  Rural Water Association Report – Dale Pierson 
 
6.  Directors Report 

A.  Water Operator Certification Commission Appointments 
B.  Governor’s proposed budget 

 
7. Other  

  

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight

MBOOTH
Highlight



 

 
8. Next Board Meeting:  

 
Date:  Thursday, March 3, 2016 
Time:  2:00 pm 
Place:  The Dixie Convention Center – St. George 
  Garden Room 
  1835 Convention Center Drive 
  St. George, Utah  84790 

 
9. Adjourn 
 
 
In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, individuals with special needs (including auxiliary communicative aids 

and services) should contact Dana Powers, Office of Human Resources, at: (801) 499-2117, TDD (801) 903-3978, at 
least five working days prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 



Agenda Item
3(A) 



  

 

195 North 1950 West • Salt Lake City, UT                                                                                                                                                                 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 144830 • Salt Lake City, UT  84114-4830                                                                                                                 

Telephone (801) 536-4200 • Fax (801) 536-4211 • T.D.D.  (801) 903-3978                                                                                                         
www.deq.utah.gov 

Printed on 100% recycled paper 

State of Utah  
 
 
 

GARY R. HERBERT 
Governor 

 
SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

Department of 
Environmental Quality 

 
Alan Matheson 

Executive Director 
 

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER 
Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E. 

Director 
 
 

Drinking Water Board 
Paul Hansen, P.E., Chair 
Betty Naylor, Vice-Chair 

Brett Chynoweth 
Tage Flint 

Roger G. Fridal 
Brad Johnson 

David L. Sakrison 
 David Stevens, Ph.D. 
   Mark Stevens, M.D. 

  Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E.  
Executive Secretary 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD MEETING  
November 13, 2015 - 1:00 pm 

Multi Agency State Office Building – Room 1015 
195 North 1950 West 

Salt Lake City, Utah  84116 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Hansen 
 
Paul Hansen, Board Chairman, called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 
 
Chairman Hansen welcomed the audience and acknowledged Alan Matheson, the 
Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, sitting on the Board in 
place of Brad Johnson.  
 

2. Roll Call – Ken Bousfield 
 
Board Members present: Paul Hansen, Betty Naylor, Brett Chynoweth, Tage Flint, Alan 
Matheson, Roger Fridal, and David Stevens.  
 
Board Members excused: David Sakrison and Mark Stevens. 
 
Division Staff present: Ken Bousfield, Michael Grange, Heather Bobb, Julie Cobleigh, 
Nathan Hall, Marianne Booth, Gary Kobzeff, Patti Fauver, Bernie Clark, and Ying-Ying 
Macauley.  
 

3. Approval of the Minutes: 
 
A.  September 1, 2015 
 
• Betty Naylor moved to approve the minutes. David Stevens seconded. The motion 

was carried unanimously by the Board. 
 

4. Financial Assistance Committee Report 
 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 9 

A. Status Report – Michael Grange 
 

Michael Grange, Construction Assistance Section Manager with the Division of Drinking 
Water (DDW, the Division) reported that currently in the State SRF fund there is $1.3 
million and the Division is expecting an additional $6.2 million to come into the fund over 
the course of the next year, for a total of $7.6 million to be available for the funding of 
projects. He then gave an update on the current projects and their statuses.  
 
Michael moved onto the Federal SRF fund and reported that there is currently $42,900,000 
and the Division is expecting an additional $15 million, for a total of $58 million to be 
available for the funding of projects.  
 
B. Project Priority List – Michael Grange 

 
Michael Grange proposed that Wooden Shoe be added to the project priority list with 21.6 
points and a project which consists of replacing the distribution system.  
 
• Paul Hansen moved to approve the updated project priority list. Roger Fridal 

seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 
 
C. SRF Applications 

 
i. STATE: 

 
a)  Duchesne City – Michael Grange 

 
Representing Duchesne City was Mike Stevens. 
 
Michael Grange informed the Board that Duchesne City (Duchesne) is requesting $69,000 
to construct a system wide SCADA system. The local MAGI for Duchesne is $46,236, or 
114% of the State MAGI and the after project water bill is expected to be over 2% of the 
local MAGI qualifying them as a hardship community. The Financial Assistance 
Committee (FAC) recommends that the Board authorize a $69,000 loan with 0% interest 
for 10 years to Duchesne City. 
 
• Paul Hansen moved to authorize a $69,000 loan with 0% interest for 10 years to 

Duchesne City. Tage Flint seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the 
Board. 

 
b)  Trenton Town – Julie Cobleigh 

 
Representing Trenton Town was Marla Trowbridge, Trenton Town Water Corporation, 
Clair Christiansen, Mayor of Newton Town, Kendon Godfrey, Mayor of Clarkston, and 
Scott Archibald of Sunrise Engineering. 
 
Julie Cobleigh, Environmental Engineer with the Division, informed the board that Trenton 
Town Water Corporation (Trenton), along with the towns of Clarkston and Newton, is 
requesting $1,263,000 in financial assistance to redevelop their North Fork and Big Birch 
springs which are shared equally by the 3 towns. She then informed the Board that all 3 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 3 of 9 

towns will be responsible for repayment of the loan, Trenton will get the loan in their name 
and Newton and Clarkston will establish inter-local agreements with Trenton for 
repayment of their portions of the loan. The local MAGI for Trenton is $34,163, or 84% of 
the State Magi. Their current average water bill is $52 or 1.84% of the local MAGI which 
qualifies them for additional subsidization. Financial analysis for Newton and Clarkston 
will be done before loan closing. The FAC recommends that the Board authorize a 
$632,000 loan at 1% interest for 30 years to Trenton with $631,000 in grant, contingent 
upon the establishment of inter-local agreements with Newton and Clarkston.  
 
There was discussion between the Board, Division Staff, and those representing Trenton. It 
was mentioned that with Julie’s help Trenton has identified a source of additional revenue 
for their water system; that doing the financial assistance in this manner made the most 
sense and best use of funds; and that for these 3 communities the North Fork and Big Birch 
springs are their largest sources of water. 
 
• Tage Flint moved to authorize a $632,000 loan at 1% interest for 30 years to 

Trenton with $631,000 in grant, contingent upon the establishment of inter-local 
agreements with newton and Clarkston. Roger Fridal seconded. The motion was 
carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
c)  Piute County SSD – Greenwich – Gary Kobzeff 

 
Representing Piute County Special Service District was Earl Bagley, Greenwich Water 
Association, and Jeff Albrecht of Savage Surveying. 
 
Gary Kobzeff, Environmental Engineer with the Division, informed the Board that Piute 
County Special Service District (Piute) on behalf of Greenwich Water Association 
(Greenwich) is requesting $130,000 in financial assistance to construct a new chlorination 
building with a tablet chlorination system and a small solar power system; as their existing 
chlorination equipment is inaccessible during the winter, has reached the end of its service 
life, and there is no power service at the site. The local MAGI for Greenwich is $35,027 or 
87% of the State MAGI. Their current water bill is $25 or 0.85% of the local MAGI. The 
proposed funding would increase their water bill to $51.46 or 1.77% of local MAGI, 
qualifying them for additional subsidization. Currently Piute is repaying the loan 
previously approved by the Board to Greenwich and would assume responsibility for 
repayment of this loan as well. The FAC recommends that the Board authorize a $104,000 
construction loan to Piute County with $3.26% interest for 30 years with $26,000 in grant. 
 
There was discussion between the Board, Division Staff, and those representing Piute and 
Greenwich regarding the location of the building, the solar power component, and the 
relationship of Piute and Greenwich.  
 
• Brett Chynoweth moved to authorize a $104,000 construction loan at 3.26% interest 

for 30 years to Piute County Special Service District with $26,000 in grant. David 
Stevens seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
d) Daggett Co. – Dutch John – Gary Kobzeff 

 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 4 of 9 

Gary Kobzeff informed the Board that Daggett County/Dutch John (Daggett) is requesting 
a funding increase of $260,000 to cover the higher than anticipated costs of construction as 
well as provide an adequate contingency fund. He went on to report that Daggett intends to 
rebid the project for the 2016 construction year and the additional funding, given the same 
conditions of a 50% loan 50% grant, would increase their current water bill and additional 
$2. 90, for a total water bill of $76.98. The FAC recommends that the Board authorize an 
additional $130,000 loan at 0% interest for 30 years with $130,000 in grant to Daggett 
County/Dutch John.  
 
• Paul Hansen moved to authorize a $130,000 loan increase at 0% interest for 30 

years to Daggett County/Dutch John with $130,000 in grant; for a total amended 
loan of $640,000 and total amended grant of $640,000. Brett Chynoweth 
seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
ii. FEDERAL: 

 
a)  West Erda – Extension – Julie Cobleigh 

 
Paul Hansen, Board Chairman made note that he is currently working as an engineer on 
water projects for Tooele County but does not believe that would influence his opinion on 
this action. 
 
Julie Cobleigh informed the Board that West Erda (Erda) is requesting an extension of 
funds that were authorized by the Board on November 7, 2014 and increased on January 9, 
2015 because the project has recently been modified to involve a regionalized water system 
that will connect them to Stansbury Park and the loss of Erda Acres involvement in the 
project. The FAC recommends that the Board authorize extending authorization of the loan 
of $1,622,600 at 0% interest for 30 years with $811,600 in principal forgiveness to West 
Erda. 
 
• Tage Flint moved to extend the authorization of the loan of $1,622,600 at 0% 

interest for 30 years with $811,600 in principal forgiveness to West Erda. David 
Stevens seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
b) Interlaken – Nathan Hall 

 
Representing Interlaken was Larry Headley, Mayor of Interlaken and Eric Johnson of ETJ 
Law, Inc.  
 
Nathan Hall, Environmental Engineer with the Division, reminded the Board that in 2003 
they authorized a loan of $1,248,000 at 1.8% interest for 20 years to Interlaken Mutual 
Water Company and now as a newly incorporated municipality, Interlaken Town is 
requesting $642,000 in order to pay off the remainder of that loan/transfer the loan to the 
town and pay associated attorney’s and bonding process fees, while keeping the same terms 
of the original funding. The local MAGI for Interlaken is $53,644 or 132% of the State 
MAGI. Their current water bill is $62.95 or 1.41% of the local MAGI, disqualifying them 
for additional subsidization. The FAC recommends that the Board authorize a construction 
loan of $642,000 at 1.8% interest for 10 years to pay off the 2003 loan to Interlaken Mutual 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 5 of 9 

Water Company and any associated fees in order to transfer the remainder of the loan to 
Interlaken Town. 
 
There was discussion between the Board, Division Staff, and those representing Interlaken 
and it was determined that though there is an increase in the funding amount in order to 
transfer it, there are a substantial number of savings by incorporating the water system into 
the municipality as well as making things more efficient. 
 
• David Stevens moved to authorize a construction loan of $642,000 with 1.8% 

interest for 10 years in order to pay off the 2003 loan to Interlaken Mutual Water 
Company and any associated fees to Interlaken Town. Roger Fridal seconded. The 
motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
c) Wooden Shoe Water Co. – Julie Cobleigh 

 
Representing Wooden Show Water Company was John Field, President of Wooden Shoe 
Water Company, and Jo Santos of Epic Engineering.  
 
Julie Cobleigh informed the Board that Wooden Shoe Water Company (WSWC) is 
requesting $413,292 in funding to replace approximately 4,580 feet of old leaking water 
lines and install water meters for all connections in their water system. Julie reminded the 
Board that WSWC received prior funding on July 13, 2012 and are currently under an 
administrative order by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), as well 
as having 325 IPS points and being rated as “Not Approved” by the Division. The local 
MAGI for WSWC is $35,933 or 89% of the State MAGI. Their current water bill is $54 or 
1.8% of the local MAGI, which qualifies them for additional subsidization. The FAC 
recommends the Board authorize a $413,292 construction loan to WSWC with $413,292 in 
principal forgiveness. 
 
There was discussion between the Board, Division Staff, and those representing WSWC 
and it was noted that the EPA will file Administrative Orders even though the State still has 
primacy. 
 
• Tage Flint moved to authorize a $413,292 construction loan to Wooden Shoe Water 

Company with $413,292 in principal forgiveness. David Stevens seconded. The 
motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
iii. OTHER 

 
a) Mendon City – Nathan Hall 

 
Nathan Hall reminded the Board that on September 9, 2009 they authorized a $405,000 
loan at 4% interest for 20 years to Mendon for the purpose of constructing two wells, later 
returned in November of 2012 to request additional funding of $667,000 to finish 
equipping the Booster Station Well and build a water line, and now as those projects are 
completed they are requesting approval to use the remainder of those funds for additional 
source investigation and test well construction estimated at $150,000. Division Staff 
recommends the Board authorize a change in scope to allow Mendon to use the remaining 
funds for additional source investigation and test well construction. 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 6 of 9 

 
• Brett Chynoweth moved to authorize a change in scope to allow Mendon to use the 

remaining funds for additional source investigation and test well construction. Paul 
Hansen seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
5. Authorization to Proceed with Rulemaking Actions: 
 

A.  Request to Adopt Amendments to R309-520, Facility Design and Operation: 
Disinfection – Bernie Clark 

 
Bernie Clark, Environmental Scientist with the Division, reminded the Board that on 
September 1, 2015 they authorized the Division to initiate rulemaking action to amend R309-
520. The Division made two changes, 1) general disinfection requirements that apply to all 
kinds of disinfection, and 2) revisions to the chlorination portion of the rule. A public 
comment period was held between October 1, 2015 and November 2, 2015 and 2 comments 
were received, but no changes to the rule were made. Division Staff recommends that the 
Board adopt the amendment to R309-520 and authorize staff to make the amended rule 
effective on November 16, 2015. 
 
• Betty Naylor moved to adopt the amendment to R309-520 and authorize Division 

Staff to make the amended rule effective on November 16, 2015. David Stevens 
seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
B. Request to Adopt Amendments to R309-500-6, Facility Design and Operation: Plan 

Review Operation and Maintenance Requirements, Plan Approval Procedure – Bernie 
Clark 

 
Bernie Clark reminded the Board that on September 1, 2015 they authorized the Division 
to initiate rulemaking action to amend R309-500-6. The Division made changes 
specifically to the waiver program portion of this rule; and for those waivers based on 
water line size, it would permit public water systems to construct multiple projects in a 
given year and then submit a summary of all the projects to attain after the fact plan 
submittal waiver for them. A public comment period was held between October 1, 2015 
and November 2, 2015 and 1 comment was received, but no changes to the rule were 
needed. Division Staff recommends that the Board adopt the amendment to R309-500-6 
and authorize staff to make the amended rule effective on November 16, 2015. 
 
There was discussion between the Board and Division Staff regarding the waiver process. 
 
• Brett Chynoweth moved to adopt the amendment to R309-500-6 and authorize 

Division Staff to make the amended rule effective on November 16, 2015. Betty 
Naylor seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
C. Request Authorization to Initiate Rule Revisions for adoption of the Revised Total 

Coliform Rule (federal effective date April 1, 2016): 
a)  R309-105, Administration: General Responsibilities of Public Water Systems, 
b)  R309-110, Definitions, 
c)  R309-200, Drinking Water Standards, 
d)  R309-210, Distribution System Monitoring Requirements, 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 7 of 9 

e)  R309-211, Monitoring and Water Quality: Distribution System Monitoring 
Requirements, 

f)  R309-215, Treatment Plant Monitoring Requirements. 
g)  R309-220, Public Notification Requirements, and  
h)  R309-225, Consumer Confidence Reports. 
 - Patti Fauver 

 
Patti Fauver, Rule Section Manager with the Division, informed the Board that the intent of all 
the changes in Rule 309 is to incorporate the Federal Revised Total Coliform Rule. Once 
change is the immediate public health requirements on coliform positive samples from a 
public notice requirement to a Level 1 assessment requirement, unless they have repetitive 
positive samples, and then it would become a Level 2 assessment. The other change is water 
sampling frequency and the Division is proposing monthly monitoring for all systems while 
they are in operation. Division Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to proceed 
with 1) adopting rules and an implementation strategy to require total coliform samples for all 
public water systems with the sample number based on the population served and the 
frequency based on each month of operations and 2) filing for substantive changes to R309-
100, R309-105, R309-110, R309-200, R309-210, R309-211, R309-215, and R309-225 with 
the Division of Administrative Rules for rule adoption which would commence a public 
comment period in January of 2016. 
 
There was discussion between the Board and Division Staff regarding change of reference to 
R309-214 when it should now be R309-215 and the use of exact language for public health 
notices. 
 
• Paul Hansen moved to authorize staff to proceed with 1) adopting rules and an 

implementation strategy to require total coliform samples for all public water 
systems with the sample number based on the population served and the frequency 
based on each month of operations and 2) filing for substantive changes to R309-
100, R309-105, R309-110, R309-200, R309-210, R309-211, R309-215, and R309-
225 with the Division of Administrative Rules for rule adoption which would 
commend a public comment period in January of 2016. David Stevens 
seconded. The motion was carried unanimously by the Board. 

 
6. Rural Water Association Report – Dale Pierson 

 
Dale Pierson, Executive Director of the Rural Water Association of Utah (RWAU), thanked 
the Board and turned the time over to Brian Pattee, Compliance Circuit Writer, Terry Smith, 
Management Technician, and Curt Ludvigson, Development Specialist. 
 
Brian Pattee reported that he is continuing his work on compliance issues with water systems, 
doing cross connection control training, and working with systems to keep them off the EPA’s 
Enforcement Targeting Tool (ETT) list.  
 
Terry Smith reported that he has assisted several systems with water rate studies, put together 
some water system management presentations and trainings, helped systems look at water 
usages and water rights and determining when the two will match, as well as conservation 
issues.  
 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 8 of 9 

Curt Lidvigson reported that he is continuing work of the non-public drinking water system 
rule with the 6 county area, which consists of Sanpete, Sevier, Piute, Juab, Millard & Wayne, 
and is expecting it to be adopted just after the first of the year.  
 

7. Directors Report 
 

A.  Drinking Water Boards’ 2016 Meeting Schedule 
 
Ken Bousfield, Division Director of DDW, reported on the anticipated Board meeting dates 
for 2016 and recommend that Board members notify Division Staff of any conflicts as soon as 
possible. It was also mentioned that the time for meetings would be 1:00 pm unless otherwise 
notified. 
 
B. Cross Connection Control Commission Appointments 
 
Ken then reported on the change in statute allowing him as Director to approve 
nominations and then reported on recent appointments to the Cross Connection Control 
Commission. He referred to a list of current members with the group they represent. 
 
Proposed Legislation  
 
Ken then took a moment to report on a bill that will be introduced with the Legislative 
Session beginning the 4th week in January 2016 which is being proposed by Senator 
Howard Stephenson that would cut the of ¼ of 1% of dedicated State tax monies. This cut 
would eliminate the Division’s State SRF funding. Without the State funding the Division 
would lack the ability to provide the needed match for federal SRF funding and hence 
would lose that funding as well. The net result if this bill should pass both houses of the 
legislature and not be replaced with other State monies, would be a significant cut in the 
Division’s operating funds, and that would result in the Division losing Primacy.   
 
Alan Matheson noted that the proposed bill would have some impact on the Division of 
Water Quality as well. He also noted that the Tax Review Commission, who are 
encouraging the cut, are not taking position on the value of the funding for the programs, 
just that it shouldn’t be done from dedicated tax monies.  
 
Legislative Audit on Division’s Engineering Rules 
 
Ken gave an update on the Legislative audit relative to capacity requirements for water 
systems and noted that the Division is in the process of meeting with the Governor’s Office 
to talk about the issues and once they are finalized will notify the public of the details.  

 
C.  ASDWA Annual Conference Report 
 
Ken reported on the Association of State Drinking Water Administrators (ASDWA) 
Annual Conference that was held in Fort Worth, TX. He noted that there was a lot of 
discussion regarding legionella, which is a contaminant, found in most water systems, 
transmitted via steam into human respiratory systems, and typically affects health 
compromised individuals in a hospital or nursing home setting. He also noted discussions 
regarding cyanotoxins, which is a contaminant that comes from algae in surface waters, as 



Drinking Water Board November 13, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 9 of 9 

well as water reuse that is particularly prominent in California and west Texas and involves 
the reuse of treated wastewater.  
 
Ken also reported on a presentation done by a representative of the American Water Works 
Association (AWWA) and that they are proposing a partnership between themselves, the 
American Society of Civil Engineers, and Engineers Without Borders to provide 
engineering services for water systems that are unable to afford engineering services. 
AWWA is seeking volunteers and the information is on the brochure that is part of the 
Board packet.  
 
Ken then reported on a portion of the ASDWA meeting involving a discussion of EPA’s 
program which funds technical assistance providers including the National Rural Water 
Association (which directly funds the individual state Rural Water Associations), the 
Environmental Finance Center (a consortium of Universities across the country), and the 
Rural Community Assistance Program (a similar entity to the National Rural Water 
Association expect it does not have individual state associations, it has six regional offices 
instead). The discussion at the ASDWA meeting revolved around the effectiveness of the 
various recipients of EPA’s Technical Assistance monies.  
 

8. Other  
 

9. Next Board Meeting:  
 

Date:  Friday, January 8, 2016 
Time:  1:00 pm 
Place:  Multi Agency State Office Building 
  Room 1015 
  195 North 1950 West 
  Salt Lake City, Utah  84116 

 
10. Adjourn 

 
The meeting adjourned at 2:52 pm.  
 
 
In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, individuals with special needs (including auxiliary communicative aids 

and services) should contact Dana Powers, Office of Human Resources, at: (801) 499-2117, TDD (801) 903-3978, at 
least five working days prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 



Agenda Item
3(B) 



  

 

195 North 1950 West • Salt Lake City, UT                                                                                    
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 144830 • Salt Lake City, UT  84114-4830                                                              

Telephone (801) 536-4200 • Fax (801) 536-4211 • T.D.D.  (801) 903-3978                                                           
www.deq.utah.gov 

Printed on 100% recycled paper 

State of Utah  
 
 
 

GARY R. HERBERT 
Governor 

 
SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

Department of 
Environmental Quality 

 
Alan Matheson 

Executive Director 
 

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER 
Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E. 

Director 

 

Drinking Water Board 
Paul Hansen, P.E., Chair 
Betty Naylor, Vice-Chair 

Brett Chynoweth 
Tage Flint 

Roger G. Fridal 
Brad Johnson 

David L. Sakrison 
 David Stevens, Ph.D. 
   Mark Stevens, M.D. 

  Kenneth H. Bousfield, P.E.  
Executive Secretary 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD MEETING  
November 25, 2015 – 10:00 a.m. 

Multi Agency State Office Building – Arches North Conference Room 
195 North 1950 West 

Salt Lake City, Utah  84116 
Teleconference  

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Hansen 
 
Betty Naylor, Board Vice Chairman, called the meeting to order at 10:01 
 

2. Roll Call – Michael Grange 
 
Board Members Present: Betty Naylor, Brett Chynoweth, Tage Flint, David Sakrison and 
Roger Fridal 
Paul Hansen joined the meeting at 10:09 am while item 3(A)(i) was being presented. 
 
Board Members Excused: Brad Johnson, David Stevens, and Mark Stevens 
 
Division Staff present: Michael Grange, Heather Bobb, and Marianne Booth 
 

3. Financial Assistance Committee Report 
 
A. SRF Applications 
 

i. Levan Town 
 
Representing Levan Town was Jason Worwood and Darin Robinson of Jones & DeMille 
Engineering.  
 
Michael Grange, Construction Assistance Section Manager with the Division of Drinking 
Water (the Division, DDW) informed the Board that Levan Town (Levan) is requesting 
$60,000 in financial assistance to redevelop its Rosebush Spring drinking water source as it 
has been impacted by recent streambank reinforcement work that was done in response to 



Drinking Water Board November 25, 2015                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 2 

recent fire and flooding in the adjacent watershed. The total project cost is estimated at 
$134,000 and Levan will contribute $24,000 and has secured $50,000 from the Natural 
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). The local MAGI for Levan is $37,693 or 93% of 
State MAGI. Their water bill after proposed funding would be $48.40 or 1.54% of the local 
MAGI. If authorized a construction loan, Levan would have to complete the bonding process 
adding an additional $10,000 to the overall project costs, therefore Division staff recommends 
that the Board authorize a $60,000 construction grant to Levan Town to redevelop the 
Rosebush Spring drinking water source. 
 
There was discussion between the Board, Division Staff, and those representing Levan, 
regarding the emergency nature of this request, the time limit that the funding from NRCS has 
on it, and that this is a unique situation and would not set precedence for future requests for 
funding.  
 
 Brett Chynoweth moved to authorize a $60,000 construction grant to Levan Town to 

redevelop the Rosebush Spring drinking water source. Roger Fridal seconded. The 
motion was carried unanimously by the Board.  

 
4. Next Board Meeting:  

 
Date:  Friday, January 8, 2016 
Time:  1:00 pm 
Place:  Multi Agency State Office Building 
  Room 1015 
  195 North 1950 West 
  Salt Lake City, Utah  84116 

 
5. Adjourn 

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:14 
 
 
In compliance with the American Disabilities Act, individuals with special needs (including auxiliary communicative aids 

and services) should contact Dana Powers, Office of Human Resources, at: (801) 499-2117, TDD (801) 903-3978, at 
least five working days prior to the scheduled meeting. 



Agenda Item 
4(A) 



Total State Fund: $6,812,468

Total State Hardship Fund: $880,521

Subtotal: $7,692,989

Less:

     Authorized Loans & Closed loans in construction: $4,129,000

     Authorized Hardship: $2,383,040

Subtotal: $6,512,040

  Total available after Authorized deducted $1,180,949

     Proposed Loan Project(s): $0

     Proposed Hardship Project(s): $0

Subtotal: $0

AS OF:

$2,683,468

($1,502,519)

Total Balance of ALL Funds: $1,180,949

Projected Receipts Next Twelve Months:

Annual Maximum Sales Tax Projection $3,587,500

  Less State Match for 2016 Federal Grant ($1,740,000)

  Less Appropriation to DDW $0
  Less Administration Fees ($150,800)

      SUBTOTAL Sales Tax Revenue including adjustments: $1,696,700

Payment:

    Interest on Investments (Both Loan and Hardship Accounts) $43,200

    Principal payments $3,395,254 Receive 80% in January

    Interest payments $942,564
Total Projections: $6,077,718

############ Total Estimated State SRF Funds Available through 12-01-2016 $7,258,667

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

STATE LOAN FUNDS
AS OF November 30, 2015

PROPOSED

LESS 

AUTHORIZED

    and Sales Tax Revenue

November 30, 2015

SUMMARY

TOTAL REMAINING STATE HARDSHIP FUNDS:

TOTAL REMAINING STATE LOAN FUNDS:

(see Page 2 for 

details)

(see Page 2 for 

details)



Cost Date Date

Community Loan # Estimate Authorized Closed/Anticipated Loan Grant Total

Daggett Co - Dutch John 0% int 30 yrs 3S216 1,020,000 Jan-15 May-16 640,000 640,000 1,280,000

Plymouth Town 3.49% int 30 yrs 3S217 880,000 May-15 May-16 880,000 880,000

Trenton Town 1.0% int, 30 yrs 3S234 1,263,000 Nov-15 631,000 632,000 1,263,000

Piute Co (Greenwich) 3.26% int, 30 yrs 3S236 130,000 Nov-15 104,000 26,000 130,000

Duchesne City  0% int, 10 yrs 3S233 69,000 Nov-15 69,000 69,000

Levan Town 3S235 60,000 Nov-15 60,000 60,000

   Subtotal Loans and Grants Authorized 2,324,000 1,358,000 3,682,000

Eagle Mountain 3S228P 30,000 Aug-15 30,000 30,000

Hatch Town 3S232P 25,000 Aug-15 Sep-15 25,000 25,000

Grand Water & Sewer 3S212 48,000 Jan-15 Feb-15 48,000 48,000

Springdale Town 3S214P 40,000 Jan-15 Mar-15 40,000 40,000

Cedarville-Montwell SSD 3S219P 65,000 May-15 Jun-15 27,085 27,085

LaVerkin City 3S223P 40,000 Jun-15 Jun-15 19,955 19,955

Junction Town 3S224P 40,000 Jun-15 Jun-15 40,000 40,000

Parowan 3S227P 40,000 Jul-15 Sep-15 40,000 40,000

Weber County General 3S225P 40,000 Jun-15 Sep-15 40,000 40,000

Fairfield Town 3S231P 20,000 Aug-15 Oct-15 20,000 20,000

55,000 275,040 330,040

Helper City 0% int 30 yrs 3S230 3,500,000 Jul-15 Oct-15 1,750,000 750,000 2,500,000

0

 Subtotal Planning Loans/Grants Auth 1,750,000 750,000 2,500,000
    Total authorized or closed but not yet funded $4,129,000 $2,383,040 $6,512,040

0

0

0

0

  Total Proposed Projects 0 0 0

    PROPOSED PROJECTS for Jan 2016

Authorized Funding

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

PROJECTS AUTHORIZED BUT NOT YET CLOSED

AS OF November 30, 2015

STATE LOAN FUNDS

CLOSED LOANS (partially disbursed)

PLANNING LOANS / GRANTS IN PROCESS

12/22/20151:50 PM State - Flow Chart New.xlsCommitments



5235 5240

Loan Interest  
Funds (use for Grants) Total

Cash: $6,812,468 $880,521 $7,692,989
Less:
  Loans & Grants authorized but not yet closed (schedule attached) (2,379,000) (1,633,040) (4,012,040)
  Loans & Grants closed but not fully disbursed (schedule attached) (1,750,000) (750,000) (2,500,000)
  Proposed loans & grants 0 0 0

  Administrative quarterly charge for entire year (150,800) (150,800)
  Appropriation to DDW 0 0

0 0
  FY 2016 Federal SRF 20% match of $7,800,000 (1,740,000) (1,740,000)

792,668 (1,502,519) (709,851)

Projected repayments during the next twelve months 
Thru  12-01-2016
         Principal 3,395,254 3,395,254
         Interest 942,564 942,564
Projected annual investment earnings on invested cash balance 43,200 43,200
Sales Tax allocation thru Dec-01-2016 3,587,500 3,587,500
Total $7,775,422 -$516,755 $7,258,667

* All interest is added to the Hardship Fee account.

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

STATE LOAN FUNDS

AS OF November 30, 2015

12/22/2015 1:50 PM State - Flow Chart New.xls Cash balance



Net Federal SRF Grants: $151,240,641 Principal (P): $40,533,618 Total: $1,152,642 Total: $3,123,613

Total State Matches: $33,374,100 Interest (I): $11,373,321
Closed Loans: -$184,614,741 Total P & I: $51,906,939

Total Grant Dollars: $0

Total Federal State Revolving Fund: $53,059,581
Total Federal Hardship Fund: $3,123,613

Subtotal: $56,183,194
Less:

     Authorized & Partially Disbursed Closed Loans: $10,919,209
     Authorized Federal Hardship: $1,558,871

Subtotal: $12,478,080

     Proposed Federal Project(s): $4,055,000

     Proposed Federal Hardship Project(s): $200,000

Subtotal: $4,255,000

AS OF: $38,085,372

$1,364,742

Total Balance of ALL Funds after deducting proposed actions: $39,450,114

Projected Receipts thru November 30, 2016
    2016 Fed SRF Grant $6,003,000
    2016 State Match $1,740,000
    Interest on Investments $318,000
    Principal Payments $6,104,246
    Interest $1,353,959
    Hardship & Technical Assistance fees $387,775

Total: $15,906,979

11/30/16 Total Estimated Federal SRF Funds Available through: 11/30/2016 $55,357,093

Receive 60% in January

SUMMARY

TOTAL REMAINING HARDSHIP FUNDS:

TOTAL REMAINING LOAN FUNDS:

(see Page 2 for 

details)

November 30, 2015

(see Page 2 for 

details)

PROPOSED

LESS 

AUTHORIZED & 

PARTIALLY 

DISBURSED

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

FEDERAL SRF
AS OF November 30, 2015

1997 thru 2015 SRF Grants Principal Repayments Earnings on Invested Cash Balance

FEDERAL SECOND ROUND FUNDFIRST ROUND FUND

Hardship Fund



Total Project Terms Loan # Loan Forgiveness Total

White Hills Wtr Co 1,047,000 1% int, 30 yr 3F226 Jul-14 Mar-16 519,000 518,000 1,037,000 

West Erda Improvement District 1,622,600 0% int, 30 yr 3F233 Nov-14 May-16 883,000 739,600 1,622,600 

Liberty Pipeline 699,000  2.83% 20 years (LOF $6,990) 3F236 May-15 699,000 699,000 

Fillmore City 2,552,000 2.45%, 20 yrs (LOF $21,520) 3F239 Sep-15 2,152,000 2,152,000 

Interlaken Town 642,000 1.80%, 10 yrs 3F246 Nov-15 642,000 642,000 

Wooden Shoe Water Company 413,292 100% pf 3F247 Nov-15 413,292 413,292 

0 
 $      4,895,000  $    1,670,892  $    6,565,892  $                  - 

Date Closed

0 0 

Rural Water Assn of Utah 124,758 5 yr contract for Development Specialist Ongoing Nov-12 Jan-13 0 372,776 

Cedar Point - Big Plains 83,000 0.0% 5 yrs $42,000 PF Aquafer study 3F224P May-14 0 0 83,000 

Central Iron County WCD 100,000 0.0% 5 yrs $50,000 PF Aquafer study 3F230 Nov-14 0 0 100,000 

Daniel Municipal Water 25,000 0.0% 5 yrs planning study 100% pf 3F250P Dec-15 25,000 

Eureka 694,095 Principal forgiveness 3F235 May-15 Jun-15 0 694,095 

Joseph Town 40,000 pl 100% pf 3F245P Sep-15 Oct-15 0 40,000 

Orderville Town 40,000 pl 100% pf 3F241P Sep-15 0 40,000 

Virgin Town 40,000 pl 100% pf 3F244P Sep-15 Oct-15 0 40,000 

Bluffdale City 40,000 pl 100% pf 3F242P Sep-05 0 40,000 

Elsinore 45,000 pl 100% pf 3F243P Nov-15 0 45,000 

Torrey Town 40,000 pf 3F248P Nov-15 0 40,000 

Loa Town 39,000 PF 3F251P Nov-15 0 39,000 

Forest Glen Plat A HOA 1,438,986 0% int, 30 yrs 3F222 Feb-14 Dec-14 440,000 198,986 638,986 

Kane Co WCD-Johnson 1,401,020 1.93% int, 30 yrs 3F165 Mar-11 Dec-11 974,000 149,000 1,123,000 

Taylor West Weber Water Improvement Dist 7,636,391 2.26% int, 30 yr 3F234 Feb-15 Apr-15 2,591,331 0 2,591,331 

$4,005,331 $347,986 $4,353,317 $1,558,871

$10,919,209 $1,558,871

AVAILABLE PROJECT FUNDS: $42,140,372

AVAILABLE HARDSHIP FUNDS: $1,564,742

0 

Fairfield Culinary Wtr System 1,180,000 0% int, 30 yrs 3F252 580,000 580,000 1,160,000 

Eagle Mountain City 3,366,805 1.8% int/hgf, 20 yrs 3F254 2,895,000 2,895,000 

Bear River WCD 200,000 Master Plan 3F253P 0 200,000 

$3,475,000 $580,000 $4,055,000 $200,000

*RWAU hardship grant is being disbursed monthly

$38,085,372
$1,364,742

  Total Recent Loan Closings $0 $0 $0 $0

Hardship 

Fund

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

PROJECTS AUTHORIZED BUT NOT YET CLOSED

AS OF November 30, 2015

FEDERAL STATE REVOVING FUND

Authorized From Loan Funds                           

(1st or 2nd Round)
COMMUNITY

Project
Closing Date 

Scheduled

Authorized 

Date

NOTES OF LOAN CLOSINGS SINCE LAST BOARD MEETING:

TOTAL FUNDS AFTER PROPOSED PROJECTS ARE FUNDED:
TOTAL FUNDS AFTER PROPOSED HS PROJECTS ARE FUNDED:

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION & PLANNING:

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZED:

TOTAL PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR THIS MEETING:

TOTAL PLANNING AUTHORIZED:

COMMITTED PLANNING ADVANCES / AGREEMENTS or PARTIALLY DISBURSED CLOSED 2ND ROUND AGREEMENTS:

PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR JAN 2016:

12/22/2015 1:51 PM Federal SRF - STATUS REPORT - USE THIS ONE!.xls Commitments



Loan  
Funds Hardship 

1st Round Principal Interest Fund TOTAL

Federal Capitalization Grants and State 20% match thru 2015 $184,614,741  
Earnings on Invested 1st Round Funds 1,152,642
Repayments (including interest earnings on 2nd round receipts) 40,533,618 11,373,321 3,123,613 240,797,935
Less:
  Closed loans and grants -184,614,741  -184,614,741

     SUBTOTAL of Funds Available $0 $40,533,618 $12,525,963 $3,123,613 $56,183,194

  Loans & Grants authorized but not yet closed or fully disbursed -3,785,892 -6,785,331 -347,986 -1,558,871 -12,478,080

     SUBTOTAL of Funds Available less Authorized -$3,785,892 $33,748,287 $12,177,977 $1,564,742 $43,705,114

Future Estimates:
  Proposed Loans/Grants for current board package -4,055,000 -200,000 -4,255,000

     SUBTOTAL of Funds Available less Proposed Loans & Grants -$7,840,892 $33,748,287 $12,177,977 $1,364,742 $39,450,114

PROJECTIONS THRU November-2016

0
2016 SRF Capitalization Grant (Loan Portion) 6,003,000
2016 SRF Capitalization State Match 1,740,000
Projected repayments & revenue during the next twelve months 6,104,246 1,353,959 387,775 7,845,979
Projected annual investment earnings on invested cash balance 288,000 12,000 18,000 318,000

TOTAL -$97,892 $40,140,533 $13,543,936 $1,770,516 $55,357,093

2nd Round
Loan Payments

DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER

FEDERAL SRF LOAN FUNDS

AS OF November 30, 2015

12/22/2015 1:51 PM Federal SRF - STATUS REPORT - USE THIS ONE!.xls SRF available cash



Agenda Item 
4(B) 



Project Priority List 

Presented to the Drinking Water Board 

January 8, 2016 

 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD 

PACKET FOR PROJECT PRIORITY LIST  

 

 

 
There are three new project being added to the Project Priority List: 
 

Fairfield Culinary Water  is being added to the Project Priority List with 32.2  points. Their project 

consists of a new well, tank and pump station. 

 

Old Meadows Water Company is being added to the Project priority List with 22.8 points. Their 

project consists of  a waterline replacement. 

 

Eagle Mountain is being added to the Project Priority List with 11.4 points. Their project consists of 

a new waterline and a pump station. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Drinking Water Board approve the updated Project Priority List. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 November 19, 2015

Authorized

Total Unmet Needs: Total Needs, incl. Recent funding $223,476,373

d
a
te

ty
p
e

%Green System Name County Pop. ProjectTitle Project Total Request DWB Funds Authorized

N 32.2 Fairfiled Culinary Water System Utah            35 New well, pump station, tank $1,130,000 565,000         

N 22.8 Old Meadows Iron            41 Replace Distribution System $338,747 413,292         

N 18.3 Greenwich Piute            67 $131,300 131,300         

N 11.4 Eagle Mountain Utah     25,593 New water line and pump station $3,395,763 2,895,763      

A 82.6 West Erda Tooele 158        Connect West Erda and Tooele Airport to Erda Acres $1,801,331.00 1,801,331      $1,622,600

A 50.9 Eureka City Juab 669        Waterline, meters, 2 generators $7,417,246.00 701,106

A 50.0 Boulder Farmstead Garfield          226 Water line, spring upgrades and chlorination $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000

N 25.5 Fillmore City Millard       2,260 Water Line Replacement $2,555,556 2,555,556      

N 22.9 Taylor West Weber ID Weber 6,927     3-MG tank, transmission line, new well $7,233,375 7,144,664      $7,636,391

A 22.5 White Hills Water Utah          419 Water line replacement, tank rehab, new PRV $1,047,168 1,047,168      $1,037,000

N 21.6 Wooden Shoe Summit            47 Replace Distribution System $413,292 413,292         $413,292

A 13.7 Greendale Daggett          500 New water treatment system, 50,000-gal tank $1,384,444 $1,144,444 $1,145,000

A 8.9 Herriman Salt Lake     24,000 New 3 MG tank and pump station $8,325,000 $5,000,000 $4,682,000

N 4.8 Liberty Pipeline Company Weber       2,504 New Well   $743,954 $698,647 $699,000

N = New Application E= Energy Efficiency

A = Authorized  W= Water Efficiency

P = Potential Project- no application  G= Green Infrastructure

 I= Environmentally Innovative

EMERGENCY FUNDING
N 100 Trenton Town Cache 466        Spring Re-development $401,150.00 $241,150

N 100 Marble Hills Box Elder 250        Pump replacement $152,167.00 $28,170

POTENTIAL PROJECTS

P 125.2 Soldier Summit SSD-2nd home sub Utah            33 Water line upgrade $530,303 $530,303

P 36.4 Santa Clara (on hold) Washington       8,000 Water line upgrades $6,419,202 $6,354,202

P 35.0 CUWCD-Utah Valley Utah Treatment plant upgrades $39,369,500 $36,950,000

P 24.4 Jordan Valley WCD Salt Lake     82,500 Treatment $3,200,000 

P 20.0 Pinon Forest Duchesne  n/a New system- residents haul water $21,247,000

$229,326,362 $248,561,645

GREEN PROJECTS

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 P

o
in

ts

Utah Federal SRF Program 
Project Priority List



 November 19, 2015

Authorized

Total Unmet Needs: Total Needs, incl. Recent funding $223,476,373

d
a
te

ty
p
e

%Green System Name County Pop. ProjectTitle Project Total Request DWB Funds Authorized

$229,326,362 $248,561,645

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 P

o
in

ts

Utah Federal SRF Program 
Project Priority List

P 17.9 Wendover Tooele       1,600 Water line upgrades $833,000

P 17.5 Draper City Salt Lake     15,000 Storage and distribution upgrades $35,789,000

P 17.1 East Zion SSD Kane            49 Water line $128,876 $128,876

P 16.4 Eastland SSD San Juan            60 New well for back up purposes $500,000

P 16.4 Neola Duchesne          840 Waterline upgrades, storage, source improvements $3,607,592 $3,607,592

P 15.3 Newton Town Cache          799 Spring rehabilitation, water line upgrades $1,581,500

P 15.3 South Rim Water Tooele          264 Well equipment and house, new tank $600,000

P 15.2 Midvalley Estates Water Company Iron          700 Source, storage, distribution $500,000

P 15.1 Syracuse Davis     25,200 Water line upgrades $1,589,756 $1,589,756

P 14.7 Central Waterworks Co. Sevier          450 Storage and distribution upgrades $1,400,000

P 14.0 Herriman Salt Lake     18,431 Booster Pump, water line $2,050,000

P 13.7 Cornish Town Cache          300 Connect to Lewiston, rehab well $1,226,263

P 13.7 Morgan City Morgan       3,250 Water line upgrades $692,026

P 13.5 Riverdale Weber       8,200 New well and tank, water line upgrades $2,050,000

P 13.3 Richfield City Sevier       7,111 System repairs $2,722,000

P 13.0 Uintah City Weber       1,300 Treatment $1,063,000

P 12.8 Centerfield Sanpete 1,200 New tank, upgrade water lines $3,600,000

P 12.6 Enterprise Washington       1,500 New tank, upgrade water lines $1,917,100

P 12.6 Price River Carbon       7,659 New tank, water lines, treatment $2,750,000

P 11.6 Manila Culinary Water Co. Utah       2,450 Treatment and water line upgrades $700,000

P 11.6 Jordan Valley WCD Salt Lake     82,500 Flouride facility, well equipping $3,694,000 $2,000,000

P 11.4 Pineview West Water Company Weber          115 Telemetry system $25,000

P 11.4 North Ogden City Weber     15,000 Water line upgrades $746,000 $746,000

P 11.3 Farmington Davis     15,000 New well, new tank, water line replacement $2,830,000

P 10.7 Ogden City Weber     77,000 Source rehabilitation, treatment plant upgrades $26,500,000

P 10.7 High Valley Water Company Summit          850 Water line upgrades $1,000,000

P 10.3 City of Monticello San Juan       2,000 Storage and distribution upgrades $1,200,000

P 9.8 Gorgoza Summit       4,200 Waterline upgrades $1,000,000

P 9.7 Moutain Regional SSD Summit       6,700 Transmission line $600,000

P 9.7 Benson Culinary Water District Cache          743 New tank, water line replacement $500,000

P 9.3 Mapleton City Utah       7,300 Replace distribution lines $15,339,560

P 9.2 Greendale Water Co. Daggett          500 Treatment system $800,000

P 9.1 Center Creek Wasatch          200 Pump house and pump $80,000

P 8.4 Nibley City Cache       4,300 New tank $1,270,355



 November 19, 2015

Authorized

Total Unmet Needs: Total Needs, incl. Recent funding $223,476,373

d
a
te

ty
p
e

%Green System Name County Pop. ProjectTitle Project Total Request DWB Funds Authorized

$229,326,362 $248,561,645

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 P

o
in

ts

Utah Federal SRF Program 
Project Priority List

P 8.3 Hurricane Washington       8,000 Water line replacement and new tank $5,047,899

P 7.6 Harmony Farms Water User Assoc. Washington          300 Water line Replacement $3,000

P 6.8 Hooper Water Improvement District Weber     16,520 Storage, water lines, treatment $2,887,000

P 6.7 Centerville City Davis     16,000 Replacement well, water line upgrades $2,965,000

P 6.1 Marble Hill Water Company Box Elder          250 New storage tank $225,000

P 4.5 Peterson Pipeline Association Morgan          450 Source, storage, distribution $1,700,000

P 4.5 Perry City Box Elder       4,603 Source, storage, distribution $4,782,220

P 3.9 Wolf Creek Country Club Weber       2,000 Water line $180,000

P 3.4 Highland City Utah     15,066 New well houses $650,000



Agenda Item 
4(C)(i)(a) 



Bear River Water Conservancy District 

Presented to the Drinking Water Board  

January 8, 2016 

  

 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD 

BOARD PACKET FOR PLANNING ADVANCE 

 

 

 

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: 

 

Bear River Water Conservancy District (BRWCD) is requesting $200,000 in financial 

assistance to create a Water Master Plan. The cost of the Master Plan is $215,000 and the 

District has committed to contributing $15,000. 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

The Master Plan will include outreach activities to stakeholders and drinking water 

suppliers in the county, evaluation of existing water resources and demands, 

investigations into plans for Bear River water development, conservation planning tools, 

and an evaluation of the possibility of a water rights “bank.” 

 

BRWCD has a local MAGI of $42,006, based on their zip code, which is approximately 

104% of the State’s MAGI.  Currently, the average water rate is approximately $48 per 

ERC which is 1.37% of the local MAGI. The District also collects a portion of the 

County’s property taxes that goes towards the water system expenses. A planning loan at 

0% interest for 5 years would result in an average water bill of approximately $143, 

based on current water related debt and operation and maintenance costs, which is 4.10% 

of their local MAGI. The District qualifies to be considered for a planning grant.  The 

reason that their current water rate is much lower than what our analysis determines it 

should be is because they use property tax revenue to fund their water system expenses. 

 

The Financial Assistance Committee recommends two options for the Board to explore: 

 

 Grant Loan Water Bill  % MAGI 

Option 1 $200,000  $138.61 3.96% 

Option 2 $100,000 $100,000 (0%,10 years) $139.88 4.00% 

Option 3  $200,000 (0%, 5 years) $143.66 4.10% 

 

 

Financial Assistance Committee Recommendation: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Bear River WCD 

January 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

 

APPLICANT’S LOCATION:  

 

Bear River WCD is located in Box Elder County. 

 

 

MAP OF APPLICANT’S LOCATION: 

 

 

 
 

 

2015 MASTER PLAN PURPOSE: 

 

The District has the following major goals for the 2015 Master Plan: 

 

 

Goal #1 – Initial Outreach to Stakeholders 

 

Before beginning Master Planning activities, the District desires to make an initial 

outreach to important stakeholders in the District’s mission, such as State and Federal 

Agencies that assist the District with funding and regulatory oversight, PacifiCorp, the 

Bear River Canal Company, Cache County, the Lower Bear River Commission, and the 

Bird Refuge.  This initial outreach will help the District to assess the issues that affect, 

and are affected by, the District.  The information and perspectives gained in the initial 



Bear River WCD 

January 8, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 

outreach will be used to plan the activities that are important to the District for a 

successful and responsive Master Plan. 

 

 

Goal #2 – Outreach to Public Drinking Water Suppliers in Box Elder County 

 

The District proposes to conduct information gathering meetings in all quadrants of Box 

Elder County to find out the major water supply problems and issues currently being 

experienced by public drinking water providers. This outreach is intended to include all 

interested parties in the County including municipalities, unincorporated areas, 

community councils, irrigators, canal companies, landowners, developers, industries, etc.  

 

The District will collect the information provided during the outreach to prepare 

information regarding: 

 

• Areas needing assistance  

• Timeline of when assistance will be needed 

• The nature of the assistance needed 

 

 

Goal #3 – Evaluate Existing Water Resources & Demands 

 

Using the information collected in Goal #2, an evaluation of existing water supply and 

demand will be made for public water agencies in the County as well as for District 

service areas. 

 

The District’s 2005 Master Plan included a technical analysis for each public water 

supplier in the County to project the population served, water demands vs supply, and 

additional population that could be served before additional water supplies would be 

needed.  It is proposed that the 2015 Master Plan repeat this process to update the work 

done in 1999 and 2005.  This evaluation will also include water rights evaluations for 

each supplier, as was done in 1999 and 2005.  

 

The outcome of the evaluation will be a forecast of water needs for public water supply 

agencies throughout the County, including the District.  The forecast will show when 

additional water will be needed by each public water supply agency.  This forecast will 

be demonstrated with a map showing graphically each public water supplier’s service 

area and when they will need additional water supplies. 

 

 

Goal #4 – Develop Box Elder County’s Plans for Bear River Water Development 

 

The State of Utah has been studying Bear River water development for several decades.  

In the past 5 years, increased activity is being focused by the State on dam sites for water 

storage and transmission routes for water conveyance. The Bear River Water 

Conservancy District has been increasingly interested in planning future use of Box Elder 



Bear River WCD 

January 8, 2016 

Page 4 

 

 

County’s allotment of 60,000 acre feet of water that will ultimately be delivered from the 

Bear River Development project. 

 

Topics of interest for Bear River water include: 

 

• Where the water would likely be needed in the County 

• When the County’s growth would need and justify additional water supplies 

• Conceptual level planning to determine how the water could be treated, stored and 

conveyed to the points of use 
 

 
Goal #5 – Prepare Conservation Planning Tools 

 

One of the State of Utah’s important goals for water supply for the future is to achieve 

25% conservation in water use by the year 2050.  Water conservation in Box Elder 

County may not be currently be at the top of the priority list for most water providers, but 

in the future it will be increasingly important.  The Master Planning process will include 

discussions with water suppliers regarding how conservation can benefit water suppliers 

and water users and how to make conservation a priority. 

 

 

Goal #6 – Evaluate the Possibility of a Water Rights “Bank”: 

 

The District has felt the need for many years to purchase water rights within the County, 

but the District has not yet acted towards that end.  District staff visualizes a “water 

bank” where water rights and canal shares are bought, sold and managed by the District 

in order to put the water to beneficial use and keep the water in Box Elder County.  

 

The District needs to consider all of the ramifications of this possibility and make a 

decision whether or not to pursue this goal.  If the decision is made to move forward, the 

District will need to develop policy for the program and propose a funding mechanism.  

 

 

POPULATION GROWTH: 

 

According to the Utah State Governor’s Office of Planning and Budgeting, the 

anticipated growth rate for Box Elder County is approximately 1.8% per year over the 

next 30 years 

 

 Year Population  

Current: 2015 52,000  

Projected: 2045 84,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Bear River WCD 

January 8, 2016 

Page 5 

 

 

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE: 

 

Apply to DWB for Planning Funds: November  2015 

Division Funding Authorization: January 2016 

Completion of Planning Study: June 2016 

  

 

COST ESTIMATE: 

 

Engineering Study: $215,000 

Total Planning Cost: $215,000 

 

 

COST ALLOCATION: 

 

The cost allocation proposed for the project is shown below.   

 

Funding Source Cost Sharing  Percent of Project 

DWB Grant: $200,000  93% 

System Contribution $15,000  7% 

Total Amount: $215,000  100% 



Bear River WCD 

January 8, 2016 

Page 6 

 

 

 

APPLICANT:  Bear River WCD 

  102 W Forest St. 

Brigham City, UT 84302 

435-723-7034 

 

PRESIDING OFFICIAL &   

CONTACT PERSON:  Voneene Jorgensen, General Manager 

  102 W Forest St. 

Brigham City, UT 84302 

435-723-7034 

voneenej@brwcd.com 

 

 

TREASURER/RECORDER:  Charles Holmgren 

435-279-3303 (ph) 

 

CONSULTING ENGINEER:  William Bigelow 

     Hansen, Allen & Luce 

     6771 S 900 E 

     Midvale, UT 84047 

     801-566-5599 

     bbigelow@hansenallenluce.com  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Bear River WCD FUNDING SOURCE: Federal SRF

         COUNTY: Box Elder

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

50 % Loan & 50 % P.F.

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 52,000 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 760 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $48.00 * PROJECT TOTAL: $215,000

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.37% FINANCIAL PTS: 81 LOAN AMOUNT: $100,000

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $42,006 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $100,000

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $200,000

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 104%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.05% 0.00% ** 0.00%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 10 10 10 10

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.05% 0.00% 0.00%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $10,000.00 $12,359.80 $20,000.00 $10,000.00

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $1,000.00 $1,235.98 $2,000.00 $1,000.00

$14.47 $17.89 $28.95 $14.47

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $771,872.00 $771,872.00 $771,872.00 $771,872.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $436,250.00 $436,250.00 $436,250.00 $436,250.00

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $56,543.60 $56,661.59 $57,043.60 $56,543.60

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $1,664.03 $1,664.19 $643.36 $1,664.03

$1,275,665.60  $1,278,379.37   $488,956.60  $1,275,665.60

TAX REVENUE: $736,209.00 $736,209.00 $736,209.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $139.88 $140.17 $56.03 $139.88

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 4.00%  4.00%   1.60% 4.00%

 

** Equiv. Ann. Payment (Loan $398,000 and Grant $27,050)

Master Plan

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



R309-700-5
Bear River WCD

Box Elder

December 9, 2015

TABLE 2
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

POINTS

1. COST EFFECTIVENESS RATIO (SELECT ONE)

A. Project cost $0 to $500 per benefitting connection 16 X

B. $501 to $1,500 14

C. $1,501 to $2,000 11

D. $2,001 to $3,000 8

E. $3,001 to $5,000 4

F. $5,001 to $10,000 1

G. Over $10,000 0

$283

2. CURRENT LOCAL MEDIAN ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (AGI) (SELECT ONE)

A. Less than 70% of State Median AGI 19

B. 71 to 80% of State Median AGI 16

C. 81 to 95% of State Median AGI 13

D. 96 to 110% of State Median AGI 9 X

E. 111 to 130% of State Median AGI 6

E. 131 to 150% of State Median AGI 3

F. Greater than 150% of State Median AGI 0

104%

3. PROJECT FUNDING CONTRIBUTED BY APPLICANT (SELECT ONE)

a. Greater than 25% of project funds 17

b. 15 to 25% of project funds 14

c. 10 to 15% of project funds 11

c. 5 to 10% of project funds 8 X

d. 2 to 5% of project funds 4

e. Less than 2% of project funds 0

7.0%

4. ABILITY TO REPAY LOAN

4. WATER BILL (INCLUDING TAXES) AFTER PROJECT IS BUILT RELATIVE TO LOCAL MEDIAN 

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (SELECT ONE) 

a. Greater than 2.50% of local median AGI 16 X

b. 2.01 to 2.50% of local median AGI 12

c. 1.51 to 2.00% of local median AGI 8

d. 1.01 to 1.50% of local median AGI 3

e. 0 to 1.00% of local median AGI 0

4.00%

5. SPECIAL INCENTIVE POINTS Applicant: (Mark all that apply)

A. has a replacement fund receiving annual deposits of 5% of the system's drinking water budget been 

established, and has already accumulated a minimum of 10% of said annual DW budget in this reserve 

fund. 5 X

B. Has a replacement fund equal to at least 15% or 20% of annual DW budget. 5 X

C. Is creating or enhancing a regionalization plan 16 X

D. Has a rate structure encouraging conservation 6 X

TOTAL POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 81

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 100



Bear River WCD

PROPOSED BOND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 50 % Loan & 50 % P.F.

PRINCIPAL $100,000.00         ANTICIPATED CLOSING DATE 01-Jun-16

INTEREST 0.00% FIRST P&I PAYMENT DUE 01-Jan-17

TERM 10 REVENUE BOND

NOMIN. PAYMENT $10,000.00 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $100,000.00

BEGINNING DATE OF ENDING PAYM

YEAR BALANCE PAYMENT PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST BALANCE NO.

====== ================ ================ ================ = ================== ================== ================= =====

2016 $100,000.00 $0.00 * $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 0

2017 $100,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 1

2018 $90,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 2

2019 $80,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 3

2020 $70,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 4

2021 $60,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 5

2022 $50,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 6

2023 $40,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 7

2024 $30,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 8

2025 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 9

2026 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 10

---------------------------- ------------------------------- --------------------------------

$100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00

*Interest Only Payment 



Bear River WCD

DWB Loan Terms DW Expenses (Estimated) DW Revenue Sources (Projected)

Local Share (total): 15,000$             Proposed Facility Capital Cost: 215,000$         Beginning Cash: -$                   

Other Agency Funding: -$                   Existing Facility O&M Expense: 771,872$         Existing Customers (ERC): 760

DWB Grant Amount: 100,000$           Proposed Facility O&M Expense: 771,872$         Projected Growth Rate: 1.0%

DWB Loan Amount: 100,000$           O&M Inflation Factor: 1.0% Impact Fee/Connection Fee: 5,000$               

DWB Loan Term: 10                       Existing Debt Service: 349,000$        Current Monthly User Charge: 48.00$               

DWB Loan Interest: 0.00%  Needed Average Monthly User Charge: 139.88$             

DWB Loan Payment: 10,000$             

DW Revenue Projections

Growth Annual Total Existing Debt

Rate Growth Users User Charge Impact Fee Property Tax Total DWB Loan DWB Loan Remaining Principal Interest DW Debt O&M Total Service

Yr (%) (ERC) (ERC) Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Repayment Reserves Principal Payment Payment Service Expenses Expenses Ratio

0 1.0% 8 760 437,760 40,000             736,209           1,213,969        -                        -                  100,000           -                   -                     349,000           771,872           1,120,872          -                     

1 1.0% 8 768 1,289,094 40,000             736,209           2,065,303        10,000                  1,000               90,000             10,000             -                     349,000           771,872           1,131,872          3.60                   

2 1.0% 7 775 1,300,843 35,000             736,209           2,072,052        10,000                  1,000               80,000             10,000             -                     349,000           779,591           1,139,591          3.60                   

3 1.0% 8 783 1,314,271 40,000             736,209           2,090,480        10,000                  1,000               70,000             10,000             -                     349,000           787,387           1,147,387          3.63                   

4 1.0% 8 791 1,327,699 40,000             736,209           2,103,908        10,000                  1,000               60,000             10,000             -                     349,000           795,260           1,155,260          3.65                   

5 1.0% 8 799 1,341,127 40,000             736,209           2,117,336        10,000                  1,000               50,000             10,000             -                     349,000           803,213           1,163,213          3.66                   

6 1.0% 8 807 1,354,555 40,000             736,209           2,130,764        10,000                  1,000               40,000             10,000             -                     349,000           811,245           1,171,245          3.68                   

7 1.0% 8 815 1,367,984 40,000             736,209           2,144,193        10,000                  1,000               30,000             10,000             -                     349,000           819,358           1,179,358          3.69                   

8 1.0% 8 823 1,381,412 40,000             736,209           2,157,621        10,000                  1,000               20,000             10,000             -                     349,000           827,551           1,187,551          3.70                   

9 1.0% 8 831 1,394,840 40,000             736,209           2,171,049        10,000                  1,000               10,000             10,000             -                     349,000           835,827           1,195,827          3.72                   

10 1.0% 9 840 1,409,946 45,000             736,209           2,191,155        10,000                  1,000               -                   10,000             -                     349,000           844,185           1,204,185          3.75                   

Total Paid in Debt Service = 100,000           -                     



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Bear River WCD FUNDING SOURCE: Federal SRF

         COUNTY: Box Elder

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

0 % Loan & 100 % P.F.

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 52,000 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 760 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $48.00 * PROJECT TOTAL: $215,000

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.37% FINANCIAL PTS: 81 LOAN AMOUNT: $0

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $42,006 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $200,000

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $200,000

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 104%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.05% 0.00% ** 0.00%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 5 5 5 5

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.05% 0.00% 0.00%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $57.89 $0.00

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $771,872.00 $771,872.00 $771,872.00 $771,872.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $436,250.00 $436,250.00 $436,250.00 $436,250.00

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $56,043.60 $56,043.60 $58,043.60 $56,043.60

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $1,663.38 $1,663.38 $644.68 $1,663.38

$1,264,165.60  $1,264,165.60   $489,956.60  $1,264,165.60

TAX REVENUE: $736,209.00 $736,209.00 $736,209.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $138.61 $138.61 $58.55 $138.61

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 3.96%  3.96%   1.67% 3.96%

 

** Equiv. Ann. Payment (Loan $398,000 and Grant $27,050)

Master Plan

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



Agenda Item 
4(C)(i)(b) 



Fairfield 

Presented to the Drinking Water Board 

January 8, 2016 

  

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD 

BOARD PACKET FOR CONSTRUCTION LOAN 

  

 

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: 

 

Fairfield has a project consisting of a new water well, storage tank, pump station and 

treatment facility as well as meter upgrades. The cost of the project is estimated at 

$1,180,000. The applicant plans to contribute $20,000 toward the project. Currently they 

only have 20 connections, and anticipate receiving subsidization from the town’s general 

fund. A General Obligation bond would likely be issued rather than a water revenue 

bond. They scored 32.2 points on the project priority list.   

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

The local MAGI for Fairfield is $35,766 (88% of the state MAGI), but their after project 

water bill is over 4% of the local MAGI. Therefore they do qualify as a hardship 

community to receive principle forgiveness, reduced interest rate, and an extended year 

term. They have recently raised their water rates to $55 or 1.90% local MAGI. 

 

 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Financial Assistance Committee recommend to the Drinking Water Board to 

authorize $1,160,000 with an interest rate of 0% for 30 years and $580,000 in Principle 

Forgiveness. The repayable amount would be $580,000. Conditions include that they 

resolve all issues on their compliance report.



Fairfield 

January 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

APPLICANT’S LOCATION:  

 

Fairfield is located in Utah County approximately 20 miles west of Lehi. 

 

MAP OF APPLICANT’S LOCATION: 

 

 
 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

The project consists of a new 300-500 gpm well (they currently have only a spring as 

their sole source of drinking water), a new 300,000 gallon storage tank, new pump station 

and new automated treatment facility as well as meter upgrades  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fairfield 



Fairfield 

January 8, 2016 

Page 3 

 

POPULATION GROWTH: 

 

According to the their application, Fairfield is expected to grow at an average annual rate 

of change of 4.5% over the next 20 years. Projected populations and number of 

connections are shown in the table below: 

 

Year Population Connections 

2015 123 20 

2020 151 29 

2025 185 40 

2030 227 53 

2035 277 69 

 

 

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE: 

 

FA Committee Conference Call: Dec 2015 

DWB Funding Authorization: Jan 2015 

Complete Design: Feb 2016 

Plan Approval: Feb 2016 

Advertise for Bids: Mar 2016 

Begin Construction: Mar 2016 

Complete Construction: Jun 2016 

Receive Operating Permit: Jul 2016 

  

 

 

COST ESTIMATE: 

 

Legal – Bonding, Admin $11,300 

Engineering- Plan, Design, CMS $90,000 

Construction – Pump Station $311,000 

Construction – Well $260,000 

Construction – Storage Tank $432,050 

Construction – Meters $20000 

Contingency $50,000 

DDW Admin Fee $0 

Total Project Cost $1,180,000 

 



Fairfield 

January 8, 2016 

Page 4 

 

COST ALLOCATION: 

 

The cost allocation proposed for the project is shown below:  

Funding Source Cost Sharing Percent of Project 

DWB Loan ( 0%, 30-yr) $580,000 49.2% 

DWB Grant  $580,000 49.2% 

Self-Contribution $20,000 1.7% 

 

ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST OF WATER SERVICE: 

 

Operation and Maintenance $6,940 

Existing DW Debt Service $0 

DDW Debt Service (0%, 30 yrs):   $19,333 

DDW Debt Reserve (10%):   $1,933 

DDW Coverage (15%): $2,900 

Replacement Reserve Account (5%):   n/a 

Annual Cost/ERC:   $1,555 

Monthly Cost/ERC:   $129.61 

Cost as % MAGI:   4.35% 

 

 



Fairfield 

January 8, 2016 

Page 5 

 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

 

APPLICANT: Fairfield Culinary Water System 

 PO Box 271 

 Cedar Fort, Utah 84013 

 801-766-3509 

  

PRESIDING OFFICIAL & Peter Lawrence 

CONTACT PERSON: Mayor Pro-Tem 

 PO Box 258 

 Cedar Fort, Utah 84013 

 801-602-7795 

 prlawrence22@gmail.com 

  

CONSULTING ENGINEER:  Ryan Taylor 

 Epic Engineering 

 50 East 100 South 

 Heber City, Utah 84032 

 435-654-6600 

 rtaylor@epiceng.net 

  

RECORDER: David Hansen 

 801-768-3716 

  

  

FINANCIAL CONSULTANT: n/a 

  

CITY ATTORNEY: n/a 

  

BOND ATTORNEY: n/a 

  

  

  

  
  
 



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Fairfield FUNDING SOURCE: Federal SRF

         COUNTY: Sanpete

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

50 % Loan & 50 % P.F.

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 123 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 20 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $44.05 * PROJECT TOTAL: $1,180,000

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.48% FINANCIAL PTS: 51 LOAN AMOUNT: $580,000

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $35,766 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $580,000

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $1,160,000

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 88%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.05% 0.00% ** 2.48%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 30 30 30 30

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.05% 0.00% 2.48%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $19,333.33 $33,745.38 $38,666.67 $27,637.19

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $2,900.00 $5,061.81 $5,800.00 $4,145.58

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $1,933.33 $3,374.54 $3,866.67 $2,763.72

$1,208.33 $2,109.09 $2,416.67 $1,727.32

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $6,940.00 $6,940.00 $6,940.00 $6,940.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $347.00 $347.00 $167.00 $347.00

$31,106.67  $49,121.73   $3,340.00  $41,486.48

TAX REVENUE: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $129.61 $204.67 $215.31 $172.86

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 4.35%  6.87%   7.22% 5.80%

 

** subsidized by local businesses 

new well, tank, pump station, treatment

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



R309-700-5
Fairfield

Sanpete

December 1, 2015

TABLE 2
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

POINTS

1. COST EFFECTIVENESS RATIO (SELECT ONE)

A. Project cost $0 to $500 per benefitting connection 16

B. $501 to $1,500 14

C. $1,501 to $2,000 11

D. $2,001 to $3,000 8

E. $3,001 to $5,000 4

F. $5,001 to $10,000 1

G. Over $10,000 0 X

$59,000

2. CURRENT LOCAL MEDIAN ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (AGI) (SELECT ONE)

A. Less than 70% of State Median AGI 19

B. 71 to 80% of State Median AGI 16

C. 81 to 95% of State Median AGI 13 X

D. 96 to 110% of State Median AGI 9

E. 111 to 130% of State Median AGI 6

E. 131 to 150% of State Median AGI 3

F. Greater than 150% of State Median AGI 0

88%

3. PROJECT FUNDING CONTRIBUTED BY APPLICANT (SELECT ONE)

a. Greater than 25% of project funds 17

b. 15 to 25% of project funds 14

c. 10 to 15% of project funds 11

c. 5 to 10% of project funds 8

d. 2 to 5% of project funds 4

e. Less than 2% of project funds 0 X

1.7%

4. ABILITY TO REPAY LOAN

4. WATER BILL (INCLUDING TAXES) AFTER PROJECT IS BUILT RELATIVE TO LOCAL MEDIAN 

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (SELECT ONE) 

a. Greater than 2.50% of local median AGI 16 X

b. 2.01 to 2.50% of local median AGI 12

c. 1.51 to 2.00% of local median AGI 8

d. 1.01 to 1.50% of local median AGI 3

e. 0 to 1.00% of local median AGI 0

5.80%

5. SPECIAL INCENTIVE POINTS Applicant: (Mark all that apply)

A. has a replacement fund receiving annual deposits of 5% of the system's drinking water budget been 

established, and has already accumulated a minimum of 10% of said annual DW budget in this reserve 

fund. 5

B. Has a replacement fund equal to at least 15% or 20% of annual DW budget. 5

C. Is creating or enhancing a regionalization plan 16 X

D. Has a rate structure encouraging conservation 6 X

TOTAL POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 51

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 100



Fairfield

PROPOSED BOND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 50 % Loan & 50 % P.F.

PRINCIPAL $580,000.00         ANTICIPATED CLOSING DATE 15-Mar-16

INTEREST 0.00% FIRST P&I PAYMENT DUE 15-Mar-17

TERM 30 REVENUE BOND

NOMIN. PAYMENT $19,333.33 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $580,000.00

BEGINNING DATE OF ENDING PAYM

YEAR BALANCE PAYMENT PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST BALANCE NO.

====== ================ ================ ================ = ================== ================== ================= =====

2016 $580,000.00 $0.00 * $0.00 $0.00 $580,000.00 0

2017 $580,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $565,000.00 1

2018 $565,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $0.00 $549,000.00 2

2019 $549,000.00 $17,000.00 $17,000.00 $0.00 $532,000.00 3

2020 $532,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $0.00 $514,000.00 4

2021 $514,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $495,000.00 5

2022 $495,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $476,000.00 6

2023 $476,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $457,000.00 7

2024 $457,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $438,000.00 8

2025 $438,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $419,000.00 9

2026 $419,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 10

2027 $400,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $381,000.00 11

2028 $381,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $362,000.00 12

2029 $362,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $343,000.00 13

2030 $343,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $324,000.00 14

2031 $324,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $305,000.00 15

2032 $305,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $286,000.00 16

2033 $286,000.00 $19,000.00 $19,000.00 $0.00 $267,000.00 17

2034 $267,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $247,000.00 18

2035 $247,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $227,000.00 19

2036 $227,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $207,000.00 20

2037 $207,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $187,000.00 21

2038 $187,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $167,000.00 22

2039 $167,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $147,000.00 23

2040 $147,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $127,000.00 24

2041 $127,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $107,000.00 25

2042 $107,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $87,000.00 26

2043 $87,000.00 $21,000.00 $21,000.00 $0.00 $66,000.00 27

2044 $66,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $44,000.00 28

2045 $44,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 29

2046 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 30

---------------------------- ------------------------------- --------------------------------

$373,000.00 $373,000.00 $0.00

*Interest Only Payment 



Fairfield

DWB Loan Terms DW Expenses (Estimated) DW Revenue Sources (Projected)

Local Share (total): 20,000$             Proposed Facility Capital Cost: 1,180,000$     Beginning Cash: -$                   

Other Agency Funding: -$                   Existing Facility O&M Expense: 6,940$             Existing Customers (ERC): 20

DWB Grant Amount: 580,000$           Proposed Facility O&M Expense: 6,940$             Projected Growth Rate: 4.5%

DWB Loan Amount: 580,000$           O&M Inflation Factor: 1.0% Impact Fee/Connection Fee: 3,600$               

DWB Loan Term: 30                       Existing Debt Service: -$                     Current Monthly User Charge: 44.05$               

DWB Loan Interest: 2.48%  Needed Average Monthly User Charge: 172.86$             

DWB Loan Payment: 27,637$             

DW Revenue Projections

Growth Annual Total Existing Debt

Rate Growth Users User Charge Impact Fee Property Tax Total DWB Loan DWB Loan Remaining Principal Interest DW Debt O&M Total Service

Yr (%) (ERC) (ERC) Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Repayment Reserves Principal Payment Payment Service Expenses Expenses Ratio

0 4.5% 1 20 10,572 3,600               -                   14,172             -                        -                  580,000           -                   -                     -                   6,940               6,940                 -                     

1 4.5% 1 21 43,561 3,600               -                   47,161             15,000                  1,933               567,000           13,000             14,384                -                   6,940               23,873               2.68                   

2 4.5% 1 22 45,635 3,600               -                   49,235             16,000                  1,933               553,000           14,000             14,062                -                   7,009               24,943               2.64                   

3 4.5% 1 23 47,709 3,600               -                   51,309             17,000                  1,933               539,000           14,000             13,714                -                   7,079               26,013               2.60                   

4 4.5% 1 24 49,784 3,600               -                   53,384             18,000                  1,933               525,000           14,000             13,367                -                   7,150               27,084               2.57                   

5 4.5% 1 25 51,858 3,600               -                   55,458             19,000                  1,933               510,000           15,000             13,020                -                   7,222               28,155               2.54                   

6 4.5% 1 26 53,932 3,600               -                   57,532             19,000                  1,933               495,000           15,000             12,648                -                   7,294               28,227               2.64                   

7 4.5% 1 27 56,007 3,600               -                   59,607             19,000                  1,933               480,000           15,000             12,276                -                   7,367               28,300               2.75                   

8 4.5% 1 28 58,081 3,600               -                   61,681             19,000                  1,933               464,000           16,000             11,904                -                   7,441               28,374               2.85                   

9 4.5% 2 30 62,230 7,200               -                   69,430             19,000                  1,933               448,000           16,000             11,507                -                   7,515               28,448               3.26                   

10 4.5% 1 31 64,304 3,600               -                   67,904             19,000                  1,933               431,000           17,000             11,110                -                   7,590               28,524               3.17                   

11 4.5% 1 32 66,378 3,600               -                   69,978             19,000                  414,000           17,000             10,689                -                   7,666               26,666               3.28                   

12 4.5% 2 34 70,527 7,200               -                   77,727             19,000                  397,000           17,000             10,267                -                   7,743               26,743               3.68                   

13 4.5% 1 35 72,601 3,600               -                   76,201             19,000                  379,000           18,000             9,846                  -                   7,820               26,820               3.60                   

14 4.5% 2 37 76,750 7,200               -                   83,950             19,000                  361,000           18,000             9,399                  -                   7,898               26,898               4.00                   

15 4.5% 2 39 80,899 7,200               -                   88,099             19,000                  342,000           19,000             8,953                  -                   7,977               26,977               4.22                   

16 4.5% 1 40 82,973 3,600               -                   86,573             19,000                  323,000           19,000             8,482                  -                   8,057               27,057               4.13                   

17 4.5% 2 42 87,122 7,200               -                   94,322             19,000                  303,000           20,000             8,010                  -                   8,138               27,138               4.54                   

18 4.5% 2 44 91,270 7,200               -                   98,470             20,000                  283,000           20,000             7,514                  -                   8,219               28,219               4.51                   

19 4.5% 2 46 95,419 7,200               -                   102,619           20,000                  262,000           21,000             7,018                  -                   8,301               28,301               4.72                   

20 4.5% 2 48 99,568 7,200               -                   106,768           20,000                  241,000           21,000             6,498                  -                   8,384               28,384               4.92                   

21 4.5% 2 50 103,716 7,200               -                   110,916           20,000                  219,000           22,000             5,977                  -                   8,468               28,468               5.12                   

22 4.5% 3 53 109,939 10,800             -                   120,739           20,000                  197,000           22,000             5,431                  -                   8,553               28,553               5.61                   

23 4.5% 2 55 114,088 7,200               -                   121,288           20,000                  174,000           23,000             4,886                  -                   8,638               28,638               5.63                   

24 4.5% 3 58 120,311 10,800             -                   131,111           20,000                  151,000           23,000             4,315                  -                   8,725               28,725               6.12                   

25 4.5% 2 60 124,459 7,200               -                   131,659           20,000                  127,000           24,000             3,745                  -                   8,812               28,812               6.14                   

26 4.5% 3 63 130,682 10,800             -                   141,482           20,000                  103,000           24,000             3,150                  -                   8,900               28,900               6.63                   

27 4.5% 3 66 136,905 10,800             -                   147,705           21,000                  78,000             25,000             2,554                  -                   8,989               29,989               6.61                   

28 4.5% 3 69 143,128 10,800             -                   153,928           22,000                  53,000             25,000             1,934                  -                   9,079               31,079               6.58                   

29 4.5% 3 72 149,351 10,800             -                   160,151           22,000                  27,000             26,000             1,314                  -                   9,170               31,170               6.86                   

30 4.5% 3 75 155,574 10,800             -                   166,374           22,000                  -                   27,000             670                     -                   9,261               31,261               7.14                   

Total Paid in Debt Service = 580,000           248,645             



Utah Department Of Environmental Quality

Division Of Drinking Water 

 

Admin Contacts

 

Inventory Report
 

Service Connections

 

 

Treatment Plants

 

 

Storage

 

 

Sources

 

 

Site Visit History

 

FAIRFIELD CULINARY
WATER SYSTEM

PWS ID: UTAH25011 Rating: Approved 04/03/2014 Active

Legal Contact
TOWN OF FAIRFIELD
DAVID A HANSEN
PO BOX 271
CEDAR VALLEY, UT 84013
Phone: 801-766-3509
County: UTAH COUNTY
System Type: Community
Population: 120

Site Updates
Last Inventory Update: 12/09/2015
Last Surveyor Update: 11/20/2015
Surveyor: CRAIG SCOTT BOSTOCK
Operating Period: 1/1 - 12/31
Last IPS Update: 12/10/2015 07:00:00

Consumptive Use Zone
Irrigation Zone: 4
Date: 02/15/2013

Name Title Office Emergency Email
HANSEN, DAVID A 801-766-3509 801-885-5280

Type Meter Type Meter Size # Of Connections
Residential Unmetered 0 18

Total Service Connections: 18

ID Plant Name Bin Status Date Design Cap Status
TP001 FAIRFIELD SPRING HYPOCHLORINATOR 0 Active

Treatment Purposes
DISINFECTION

ID Name Type Effective Volume Material Status Status Reason
ST001 160K TANK Ground 160,000 GAL Concrete Active Op Issued - Check
Total Effective Volume: 160,000 GAL

ID Source Name Status Reason Source
Type Water Type Period Of

Operation
WS001 FAIRFIELD SPRING Active Spring Groundwater 1/1 - 12/31

Date Visited Survey Type Surveyor Notified Date Next Inspection
03/28/2006 Sanitary Survey, Finished SURVEYOR, DDW

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 1 of 6



03/28/2006 Site Inspection 03/28/2006
09/22/2009 Sanitary Survey, Finished KEERS, PETER T 09/23/2009 09/30/2015
10/03/2012 Sanitary Survey, Finished ROSS, LANTY 12/14/2012 09/30/2015
11/20/2015 Sanitary Survey, Finished 11/20/2015

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 2 of 6



Bacterial Summary Report
 

Routine Bacteriological Sampling Requirements

 

 

Total Coliform Sample History

 
11/01/2014 - 12/31/2015 

Sample Reuired Schedule Begin Schedule End Operation Begin Operation End
1/Monthly/Routine 11/01/2011 1/1 12/31

Routine Sampling Repeat Sampling Source Sampling

Month # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos
Nov-2014 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dec-2014 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jan-2015 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Feb-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mar-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Apr-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
May-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jun-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jul-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Aug-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sep-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oct-2015 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nov-2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dec-2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 3 of 6



Water Monitoring Report
 

BACTERIOLOGICAL MONITORING

 

 

Disinfection ByProduct Stage 2 Monitoring

 

 

Other Distribution Monitoring

 

 

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS BY FACILITY

 

Sample Count Type Frequency Schedule Begin Schedule End Analyte Name
1 Routine Monthly 11/01/2011 COLIFORM (TCR)

Sample Count Type Frequency Sample Label
1 Routine 3 Years UTAH25011    DS001 Sample

ID below

ID Site Last Sample Next Sample Due
MR001 MORRIS HOME 07/01/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014

Please sample in August

Analyte Name ID Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

LEAD AND COPPER DS001 5 Routine 3 Years 2013 06/01/2016 - 09/30/2016

ID NAME
WS001 FAIRFIELD SPRING

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

INORGANICS-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 06/24/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
NITRATE 1 Routine Yearly 11/19/2014 01/01/2015 - 12/31/2015
PESTICIDES-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 06/24/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
RADS - COMPLIANCE 1 Routine 3 Years 06/24/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
SULFATE,SODIUM,TDS 1 Routine 3 Years 06/24/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
VOC-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 06/24/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 4 of 6



IPS Report
 

IPS Summary

 

 

Physical Facility Points

 

Total IPS Points Admin & Physical
Facilities Quality & Monitoring Operator Certification Significant Deficiency

100 75 35 -10 0

Code Description Severity Point Effective
M004 CCC-NO ANNUAL PUBLIC EDUCATION OR

AWARENESS
MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

No documentation. 10/03/2012 10

M006 CCC-LACKS WRITTEN RECORDS MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

No records 10/03/2012 10

M007 CCC-LACKS ON-GOING ENFORCEMENT PLAN MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

No documentation. 10/03/2012 10

R001 INADEQUATE BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLING
SITE PLAN

MIN 5

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

There is no TCR Sampling Site
Plan.

10/03/2012 5

SS02 SPRING COLLECTION AREA NOT FENCED MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

WS001 FAIRFIELD SPRING NO FENCING Active 11/20/2015 10

SS03 SPRING COLLECTION AREA LACKS A
DIVERSION CHANNEL

MIN 5

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

THE AREA IS SWAMPY WITH
STANDING WATER

11/20/2015 5

SS05 MINOR PONDING ON SPRING COLLECTION
AREA

MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

PLANT LIFE AND STANDING
SURFACE WATER

11/20/2015 10

SS07 DEEP ROOTED VEGETATION IN SPRING
COLLECTION AREA

MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

WS001 FAIRFIELD SPRING There are weeds and shrubs in
the area that need to be
removed.

Active 10/03/2012 10

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 5 of 6



 

Microbial Rule Violations

 

 

Operator Certification Points

 

V011 STORAGE FACILITY OVERFLOW PIPE LACKS
FREEFALL

MIN 5

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

ST001 160K TANK Active 11/20/2015 5

Total Effective Points: 75

Determined Compliance Period Code Violation Type Return To
Compliance Point Effective

12/02/2014 10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014 23 MONITORING (TCR),
ROUTINE MAJOR

N 35

Total Effective Points: 35

Type Level Required Highest Certificate Point Effective
Distribution Small System Dist 4 -10
Treatment 0

Total Effective Points: -10

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 12/10/2015 11:59:15 | Rating: Approved UTAH25011 FAIRFIELD CULINARY WATER SYSTEM page 6 of 6



Agenda Item 
4(C)(i)(c) 



Eagle Mountain City  

Presented to the Drinking Water Board 

January 8, 2016 

  

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD 

BOARD PACKET FOR CONSTRUCTION LOAN 

  

 

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: 

 

Eagle Mountain City has a project consisting of a new 16-inch PVC pipeline with a total 

length of approximately 4 miles and a new 50 hp pump station. The cost of the project is 

estimated at $3,366,805. The applicant plans to contribute $500,000 toward the project. 

They scored 11.4 points on the project priority list. 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

The local MAGI for Eagle Mountain City is $53,839 (133% of the state MAGI), and their 

after project water bill at 100% loan is 1.33% of the local MAGI.  Therefore they do not 

qualify as a hardship community. The calculated interest rate is 1.80%. 

 

The City has been contacted by staff about the possibility of taking part in the water use 

study the Division is undertaking. Staff has suggested an interest rate reduction of 0.5% if 

the city agrees to participate fully in the study, contingent upon the Governor’s budget 

proposal including the funding necessary to conduct the water use study. 

 

In addition, there appears to be some inconsistencies in the City’s 2014 Federal Single 

Audit report. An amendment may be in necessary in order to proceed with this funding. 

 

 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Financial Assistance Committee recommend to the Drinking Water Board to 

authorize a loan of $2,895,000 with an interest rate of 1.80% for 20 years. Conditions 

include that they resolve all issues on their compliance report and make necessary 

amendments to their Federal Single Audit reports. Also if the City takes part in the water 

use study, then an additional 0.5% reduction will be included.



Eagle Mountain City  

January 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

APPLICANT’S LOCATION:  

 

The Eagle Mountain City is located in Utah County approximately 14 miles west of Lehi. 

 

MAP OF APPLICANT’S LOCATION: 

 

 
 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

The project consists of a new 16-inch PVC pipeline with a total length of approximately 

4 miles and a new 50 hp pump station.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eagle Mountain City 



Eagle Mountain City  

January 8, 2016 

Page 3 

 

POPULATION GROWTH: 

 

According to the 2008 Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget, Eagel Mountian City 

is expected to grow at an average annual rate of change of 7.4% through 2030.  Projected 

populations and number of connections are shown in the table below: 

 

Year Population Connections 

2012 22,008 5,092 

2020 45,653 7,024 

2030 76,376 17,680 

 

 

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE: 

 

FA Committee Conference Call: Dec 2015 

DWB Funding Authorization: Jan 2015 

Complete Design: Dec 2015 

Plan Approval: Jan 2016 

Advertise for Bids: Jan 2016 

Begin Construction: Feb 2016 

Complete Construction: Jun 2016 

Receive Operating Permit: Jun 2016 

  

 

 

COST ESTIMATE: 

 

Legal – Bonding, Admin $35,400 

Engineering- Plan, Design, CMS $127,590 

Construction – Pump Station $242,869 

Construction – Transmission $2,669,472 

Contingency $291,474 

DDW Admin Fee $28,670 

Total Project Cost $3,395,475 

 



Eagle Mountain City  

January 8, 2016 

Page 4 

 

COST ALLOCATION: 

 

The cost allocation proposed for the project is shown below:  

Funding Source Cost Sharing Percent of Project 

DWB Loan ( 1.80%, 20-yr) $2,895,000 85.3% 

Self-Contribution $500,000 14.7% 

 

ESTIMATED ANNUAL COST OF WATER SERVICE: 

 

Operation and Maintenance $3,250,155 

Existing DW Debt Service $569,188 

DDW Debt Service (1.80%, 20 yrs):   $173,650 

DDW Debt Reserve (10%):   $17,365 

DDW Coverage (15%): n/a 

Replacement Reserve Account (5%):   $245,584 

Annual Cost/ERC:   $716 

Monthly Cost/ERC:   $59.67 

Cost as % MAGI:   1.33% 

 

 



Eagle Mountain City  

January 8, 2016 

Page 5 

 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

 

APPLICANT: Eagle Mountain City 

 1650 Stagecoach Run 

 Eagle Mountain, UT 84005 

 801-789-6671 

  

PRESIDING OFFICIAL & Chris Trusty 

CONTACT PERSON: City Engineer 

 2565 Pony Express Pkwy 

 Eagle Mountain, UT 84005 

 801-789-6671 

 ctrusty@emcity.org 

  

CONSULTING ENGINEER:  Ted Mickelsen 

 Jones & DeMille Engineering 

 765 East 340 South 

 American Fork, Utah 84003 

 801-692-0219 

 ted.m@jonesanddemille.com 

  

RECORDER: Fionnuala Kofoed 

 (801) 789-6610 

 fkofoed@emcity.org 

  

FINANCIAL CONSULTANT: n/a 

  

CITY ATTORNEY: Jeremy Cook 

 Parsons Kinghorn and Harris 

 111 East Broadway 11th Floor 

 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

 (801) 363-4300 

 jrc@pkhlawyers.com 

  
  
 



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Eagle Mtn FUNDING SOURCE: Federal SRF

         COUNTY: Utah

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

100 % Loan & 0 % P.F.

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 25,593 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 6142 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $55.47 * PROJECT TOTAL: $3,395,000

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.24% FINANCIAL PTS: 63 LOAN AMOUNT: $2,895,000

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $53,839 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $0

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $2,895,000

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 133%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.05% 1.80% ** 1.80%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 20 20 20 20

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.05% 1.80% 1.80%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $144,750.00 $213,963.37 $173,650.00 $173,650.00

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $14,475.00 $21,396.34 $17,365.00 $17,365.00

$25.92 $38.32 $31.10 $31.10

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $3,250,155.00 $3,250,155.00 $3,250,155.00 $3,250,155.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $711,485.34 $711,485.34 $711,485.34 $711,485.34

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $244,139.66 $247,600.33 $245,584.66 $245,584.66

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $684.76 $685.32 $580.62 $684.99

$4,365,005.00  $4,444,600.38   $3,566,158.00  $4,398,240.00

TAX REVENUE: $133,467.00 $133,467.00 $133,467.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $59.22 $60.30 $50.98 $59.67

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 1.32%  1.34%   1.14% 1.33%

 

** Equiv. Ann. Payment (Loan $398,000 and Grant $27,050)

4-mile long 16-inch PVC pipeline and a new pump station

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



R309-700-5
Eagle Mtn

Utah

November 20, 2015

TABLE 2
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

POINTS

1. COST EFFECTIVENESS RATIO (SELECT ONE)

A. Project cost $0 to $500 per benefitting connection 16

B. $501 to $1,500 14 X

C. $1,501 to $2,000 11

D. $2,001 to $3,000 8

E. $3,001 to $5,000 4

F. $5,001 to $10,000 1

G. Over $10,000 0

$553

2. CURRENT LOCAL MEDIAN ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (AGI) (SELECT ONE)

A. Less than 70% of State Median AGI 19

B. 71 to 80% of State Median AGI 16

C. 81 to 95% of State Median AGI 13

D. 96 to 110% of State Median AGI 9

E. 111 to 130% of State Median AGI 6

E. 131 to 150% of State Median AGI 3 X

F. Greater than 150% of State Median AGI 0

133%

3. PROJECT FUNDING CONTRIBUTED BY APPLICANT (SELECT ONE)

a. Greater than 25% of project funds 17

b. 15 to 25% of project funds 14

c. 10 to 15% of project funds 11 X

c. 5 to 10% of project funds 8

d. 2 to 5% of project funds 4

e. Less than 2% of project funds 0

14.7%

4. ABILITY TO REPAY LOAN

4. WATER BILL (INCLUDING TAXES) AFTER PROJECT IS BUILT RELATIVE TO LOCAL MEDIAN 

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (SELECT ONE) 

a. Greater than 2.50% of local median AGI 16

b. 2.01 to 2.50% of local median AGI 12

c. 1.51 to 2.00% of local median AGI 8

d. 1.01 to 1.50% of local median AGI 3 X

e. 0 to 1.00% of local median AGI 0

1.33%

5. SPECIAL INCENTIVE POINTS Applicant: (Mark all that apply)

A. has a replacement fund receiving annual deposits of 5% of the system's drinking water budget been 

established, and has already accumulated a minimum of 10% of said annual DW budget in this reserve 

fund. 5 X

B. Has a replacement fund equal to at least 15% or 20% of annual DW budget. 5 X

C. Is creating or enhancing a regionalization plan 16 X

D. Has a rate structure encouraging conservation 6 X

TOTAL POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 63

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 100



Eagle Mtn

PROPOSED BOND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 100 % Loan & 0 % P.F.

PRINCIPAL $2,895,000.00         ANTICIPATED CLOSING DATE 15-Mar-16

INTEREST 1.80% FIRST P&I PAYMENT DUE 15-Mar-17

TERM 20 REVENUE BOND

NOMIN. PAYMENT $173,650.00 PRINC. FORGIVE.: $0.00

BEGINNING DATE OF ENDING PAYM

YEAR BALANCE PAYMENT PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST BALANCE NO.

====== ================ ================ ================ = ================== ================== ================= =====

2016 $2,895,000.00 $0.00 * $0.00 $0.00 $2,895,000.00 0

2017 $2,895,000.00 $174,110.00 $122,000.00 $52,110.00 $2,773,000.00 1

2018 $2,773,000.00 $173,914.00 $124,000.00 $49,914.00 $2,649,000.00 2

2019 $2,649,000.00 $173,682.00 $126,000.00 $47,682.00 $2,523,000.00 3

2020 $2,523,000.00 $173,414.00 $128,000.00 $45,414.00 $2,395,000.00 4

2021 $2,395,000.00 $173,110.00 $130,000.00 $43,110.00 $2,265,000.00 5

2022 $2,265,000.00 $173,770.00 $133,000.00 $40,770.00 $2,132,000.00 6

2023 $2,132,000.00 $173,376.00 $135,000.00 $38,376.00 $1,997,000.00 7

2024 $1,997,000.00 $173,946.00 $138,000.00 $35,946.00 $1,859,000.00 8

2025 $1,859,000.00 $173,462.00 $140,000.00 $33,462.00 $1,719,000.00 9

2026 $1,719,000.00 $173,942.00 $143,000.00 $30,942.00 $1,576,000.00 10

2027 $1,576,000.00 $173,368.00 $145,000.00 $28,368.00 $1,431,000.00 11

2028 $1,431,000.00 $173,758.00 $148,000.00 $25,758.00 $1,283,000.00 12

2029 $1,283,000.00 $174,094.00 $151,000.00 $23,094.00 $1,132,000.00 13

2030 $1,132,000.00 $173,376.00 $153,000.00 $20,376.00 $979,000.00 14

2031 $979,000.00 $173,622.00 $156,000.00 $17,622.00 $823,000.00 15

2032 $823,000.00 $173,814.00 $159,000.00 $14,814.00 $664,000.00 16

2033 $664,000.00 $173,952.00 $162,000.00 $11,952.00 $502,000.00 17

2034 $502,000.00 $173,036.00 $164,000.00 $9,036.00 $338,000.00 18

2035 $338,000.00 $173,084.00 $167,000.00 $6,084.00 $171,000.00 19

2036 $171,000.00 $174,078.00 $171,000.00 $3,078.00 $0.00 20

---------------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------------------

$3,472,908.00 $2,895,000.00 $577,908.00

*Interest Only Payment 



Eagle Mtn

DWB Loan Terms DW Expenses (Estimated) DW Revenue Sources (Projected)

Local Share (total): 500,000$           Proposed Facility Capital Cost: 3,423,950$     Beginning Cash: -$                   

Other Agency Funding: -$                   Existing Facility O&M Expense: 3,250,155$     Existing Customers (ERC): 6,142

DWB Grant Amount: -$                   Proposed Facility O&M Expense: 3,250,155$     Projected Growth Rate: 2.3%

DWB Loan Amount: 2,895,000$        O&M Inflation Factor: 1.0% Impact Fee/Connection Fee: 3,600$               

DWB Loan Term: 20                       Existing Debt Service: 569,188$        Current Monthly User Charge: 55.47$               

DWB Loan Interest: 1.80%  Needed Average Monthly User Charge: 59.67$               

DWB Loan Payment: 173,650$           

DW Revenue Projections

Growth Annual Total Existing Debt

Rate Growth Users User Charge Impact Fee Property Tax Total DWB Loan DWB Loan Remaining Principal Interest DW Debt O&M Total Service

Yr (%) (ERC) (ERC) Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Repayment Reserves Principal Payment Payment Service Expenses Expenses Ratio

0 2.3% 141 6,142 4,088,230 507,600           133,467           4,729,297        -                        -                  2,895,000        -                   -                     569,188           3,250,155        3,819,343          -                     

1 2.3% 141 6,283 4,499,209 507,600           133,467           5,140,276        174,110                17,365             2,773,000        122,000           52,110                569,188           3,250,155        4,010,818          2.54                   

2 2.3% 145 6,428 4,603,042 522,000           133,467           5,258,509        173,914                17,365             2,649,000        124,000           49,914                569,188           3,282,657        4,043,124          2.66                   

3 2.3% 148 6,576 4,709,024 532,800           133,467           5,375,291        173,682                17,365             2,523,000        126,000           47,682                569,188           3,315,483        4,075,718          2.77                   

4 2.3% 151 6,727 4,817,154 543,600           133,467           5,494,221        173,414                17,365             2,395,000        128,000           45,414                569,188           3,348,638        4,108,605          2.89                   

5 2.3% 155 6,882 4,928,148 558,000           133,467           5,619,615        173,110                17,365             2,265,000        130,000           43,110                569,188           3,382,124        4,141,788          3.01                   

6 2.3% 158 7,040 5,041,291 568,800           133,467           5,743,558        173,770                17,365             2,132,000        133,000           40,770                569,188           3,415,946        4,176,269          3.13                   

7 2.3% 162 7,202 5,157,298 583,200           133,467           5,873,965        173,376                17,365             1,997,000        135,000           38,376                569,188           3,450,105        4,210,034          3.26                   

8 2.3% 165 7,367 5,275,453 594,000           133,467           6,002,920        173,946                17,365             1,859,000        138,000           35,946                569,188           3,484,606        4,245,105          3.39                   

9 2.3% 170 7,537 5,397,189 612,000           133,467           6,142,656        173,462                17,365             1,719,000        140,000           33,462                569,188           3,519,452        4,279,467          3.53                   

10 2.3% 173 7,710 5,521,073 622,800           133,467           6,277,340        173,942                17,365             1,576,000        143,000           30,942                569,188           3,554,647        4,315,142          3.66                   

11 2.3% 178 7,888 5,648,537 640,800           133,467           6,422,804        173,368                1,431,000        145,000           28,368                569,188           3,590,193        4,332,749          3.81                   

12 2.3% 181 8,069 5,778,150 651,600           133,467           6,563,217        173,758                1,283,000        148,000           25,758                569,188           3,626,095        4,369,041          3.95                   

13 2.3% 186 8,255 5,911,343 669,600           133,467           6,714,410        174,094                1,132,000        151,000           23,094                569,188           3,662,356        4,405,638          4.11                   

14 2.3% 189 8,444 6,046,685 680,400           133,467           6,860,552        173,376                979,000           153,000           20,376                569,188           3,698,980        4,441,544          4.26                   

15 2.3% 195 8,639 6,186,323 702,000           133,467           7,021,790        173,622                823,000           156,000           17,622                569,188           3,735,969        4,478,780          4.42                   

16 2.3% 198 8,837 6,328,109 712,800           133,467           7,174,376        173,814                664,000           159,000           14,814                569,188           3,773,329        4,516,331          4.58                   

17 2.3% 204 9,041 6,474,192 734,400           133,467           7,342,059        173,952                502,000           162,000           11,952                569,188           3,811,062        4,554,203          4.75                   

18 2.3% 207 9,248 6,622,423 745,200           133,467           7,501,090        173,036                338,000           164,000           9,036                  569,188           3,849,173        4,591,397          4.92                   

19 2.3% 213 9,461 6,774,951 766,800           133,467           7,675,218        173,084                171,000           167,000           6,084                  569,188           3,887,665        4,629,937          5.10                   

20 2.3% 218 9,679 6,931,059 784,800           133,467           7,849,326        174,078                -                   171,000           3,078                  569,188           3,926,541        4,669,808          5.28                   

Total Paid in Debt Service = 2,895,000        577,908             



Utah Department Of Environmental Quality

Division Of Drinking Water 

 

Admin Contacts

 

Inventory Report
 

Service Connections

 

 

Treatment Plants

 

 

Storage

 

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY PWS ID: UTAH25142 Rating: Approved 10/14/1999 Active
Legal Contact

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
DAVID NORMAN
1650 E STAGE COACH  RUN
EAGLE MOUNTAIN, UT 84043
Phone: 801-789-6600
County: UTAH COUNTY
System Type: Community
Population: 17,500

Site Updates
Last Inventory Update: 08/12/2015
Last Surveyor Update: 05/22/2012
Surveyor: MARK E HANSEN
Operating Period: 1/1 - 12/31
Last IPS Update: 11/30/2015 15:00:00

Consumptive Use Zone
Irrigation Zone: 4
Date: 02/15/2013

Name Title Office Emergency Email
NORMAN, DAVID 801-789-6678 dnorman@emcity.org

Type Meter Type Meter Size # Of Connections
Residential Metered 0 5632
Commercial Metered 0 10

Total Service Connections: 5642

ID Plant Name Bin Status Date Design Cap Status
TP001 WALDEN WELL CHLORINATOR 0 Active

Treatment Purposes
DISINFECTION, GENERIC UNIT

TP002 WELL #2 CHLORINATOR 0 Active

Treatment Purposes
DISINFECTION

TP003 PONY EXPRESS WELL CHLORINATOR 0 Active

Treatment Purposes
DISINFECTION

TP004 WELL #4 CHLORINATOR Inactive

Treatment Purposes

TP005 WELL #5 CHLORINATOR Active

Treatment Purposes
TP005

ID Name Type Effective Volume Material Status Status Reason

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 1 of 7



 

Pumping Stations

 

 

Sources

 

 

Site Visit History

 

ST001 RESERVOIR #1 Ground 1,000,000 GAL Concrete Active
ST002 RESERVOIR #2 Ground 1,000,000 GAL Concrete Active
ST003 RESERVOIR #3 Ground 2,000,000 GAL Concrete Active
ST004 RESERVOIR #4 Ground 600,000 GAL Steel Active Op Issued - Check
ST005 RESERVOIR #5 Ground 2,000,000 GAL Concrete Active Op Issued - Check
Total Effective Volume: 6,600,000 GAL

ID Station Name Status Reason Capacity Availability
PF001 WELL #2 BOOSTER PUMPS Active Permanent
PF002 RESERVOIR #4 PUMP STATION Active Permanent
PF003 WELL #5 PUMP STATION Active Op Issued - Check Permanent
Total Capacity: 0 null

ID Source Name Status Reason Source
Type Water Type Period Of

Operation
WS001 WELL #1 WALDEN WELL Active Well Groundwater 1/1 - 12/31
WS002 WELL #2 Active Well Groundwater 6/1 - 9/30
WS003 JOHN JACOBS WELL Inactive Well Groundwater
WS004 WELL #3 PONY EXPRESS Active Well Groundwater 1/1 - 12/31
WS005 WELL #4 Inactive Well Groundwater 1/1 - 12/31
WS006 WELL #5 Active Well Groundwater 1/1 - 12/31

Date Visited Survey Type Surveyor Notified Date Next Inspection
06/12/2006 Sanitary Survey, Finished OAKESON, JOHN H
10/13/2009 Sanitary Survey, Finished GARRETT, JASON 10/28/2009 09/30/2015
07/26/2010 Wellhead Protection Program JOHNSON, KATE 07/26/2010
05/22/2012 Sanitary Survey, Finished 08/21/2012 09/30/2015

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 2 of 7



Bacterial Summary Report
 

Routine Bacteriological Sampling Requirements

 

 

Total Coliform Sample History

 
10/01/2014 - 11/30/2015 

Sample Reuired Schedule Begin Schedule End Operation Begin Operation End
20/Monthly/Routine 03/31/2008 1/1 12/31

Routine Sampling Repeat Sampling Source Sampling

Month # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos # Sample Tc Pos Ecoli Pos
Oct-2014 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nov-2014 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dec-2014 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jan-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Feb-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mar-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Apr-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
May-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jun-2015 26 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0
Jul-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Aug-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sep-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Oct-2015 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nov-2015 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 3 of 7



Water Monitoring Report
 

BACTERIOLOGICAL MONITORING

 

 

Disinfection ByProduct Stage 2 Monitoring

 

 

Other Distribution Monitoring

 

 

MONITORING REQUIREMENTS BY FACILITY

 

Sample Count Type Frequency Schedule Begin Schedule End Analyte Name
20 Routine Monthly 03/31/2008 COLIFORM (TCR)

Sample Count Type Frequency Sample Label
2 Routine Yearly UTAH25142    DS001 Sample

ID below

ID Site Last Sample Next Sample Due
MD001 DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014
MR001 DPB SAMPLING - MAX

RETENTION
01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014

Please sample in August

Analyte Name ID Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

LEAD AND COPPER DS001 30 Routine 3 Years 2015 06/01/2018 - 09/30/2018

ID NAME
SS001 BARTON CRK RD ARSENIC SAMPLING STATION

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

ARSENIC 1 Routine Quarterly 11/03/2015 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016
THALLIUM, TOTAL 1 Routine Quarterly 11/03/2015 01/01/2016 - 03/31/2016

WS001 WELL #1 WALDEN WELL

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

INORGANICS-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 09/11/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
NITRATE 1 Routine Yearly 04/30/2015 01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
PESTICIDES-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 09/11/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
RADS - COMPLIANCE 1 Routine 3 Years 09/11/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
SULFATE,SODIUM,TDS 1 Routine 3 Years 09/11/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
VOC-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 09/11/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016

WS002 WELL #2

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

INORGANICS-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 08/30/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
NITRATE 1 Routine Yearly 02/19/2015 01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
PESTICIDES-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 08/30/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
RADS - COMPLIANCE 1 Routine 3 Years 08/30/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
SULFATE,SODIUM,TDS 1 Routine 3 Years 08/30/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
VOC-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 08/30/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016

WS004 WELL #3 PONY EXPRESS

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 4 of 7



 

Open Compliance Schedule

 

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

INORGANICS-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 04/04/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
NITRATE 1 Routine Yearly 02/19/2015 01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016
PESTICIDES-COMPL 2 Routine 3 Years 04/04/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
RADS - COMPLIANCE 1 Routine 6 Years 09/11/2015 01/01/2020 - 12/31/2025
SULFATE,SODIUM,TDS 1 Routine 3 Years 04/04/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
VOC-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 04/04/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016

WS006 WELL #5

Name Sample
Count Type Frequency Last Sampled Next Sample Due

INORGANICS-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 08/29/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
NITRATE 1 Routine Yearly 08/29/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2014
PESTICIDES-COMPL 2 Routine 3 Years 08/19/2011 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
RADS - COMPLIANCE 1 Routine 6 Years 12/13/2012 01/01/2017 - 12/31/2022
SULFATE,SODIUM,TDS 1 Routine 3 Years 08/29/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016
VOC-COMPL 1 Routine 3 Years 08/29/2013 01/01/2014 - 12/31/2016

Type Required Activities Severity Created Due
TRMT QUARTERLY ARSENIC REPORTS

SUBMITTAL
10/01/2012 10/10/2015

TRMT QUARTERLY ARSENIC REPORTS
SUBMITTAL

10/01/2012 01/10/2016

TRMT QUARTERLY ARSENIC REPORTS
SUBMITTAL

10/01/2012 04/10/2016

TRMT QUARTERLY ARSENIC REPORTS
SUBMITTAL

10/01/2012 07/10/2016

TRMT QUARTERLY ARSENIC REPORTS
SUBMITTAL

10/01/2012 10/10/2016

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 5 of 7



IPS Report
 

IPS Summary

 

 

Physical Facility Points

 

Total IPS Points Admin & Physical
Facilities Quality & Monitoring Operator Certification Significant Deficiency

63 33 50 -20 0

Code Description Severity Point Effective
M001 CURRENT EMERGENCY RESPONSE PROGRAM REC -10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

SYSTEM HAS EMERGENCY
RESPONSE PROGRAM

04/18/2002 -10

M003 CCC-LACKS LOCAL AUTHORITY MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

SYSTEM LACKS LOCAL
AUTHORITY TO ENFORCE A
CROSS CONNECTION
CONTROL PROGRAM

04/18/2002 10

M007 CCC-LACKS ON-GOING ENFORCEMENT PLAN MIN 10

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

SYSTEM LACKS AN ON-
GOING ENFORCEMENT
ACTIVITY PLAN FOR CROSS
CONNECTION CONTROL
PROGRAM

04/18/2002 10

PSL1 NO MEANS TO RELEASE TRAPPED AIR FROM
SOURCE PUMP

MIN 6

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

10/13/2009 6

S007 WELL CASING VENT IS NOT DOWN-TURNED MIN 0

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

WS003 JOHN JACOBS WELL Inactive 10/13/2009 2

TD09 CL2 IMPROPER LOCATION FOR VENTILATING
FAN SUCTION

MIN 5

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

TP001 WALDEN WELL
CHLORINATOR

WALDEN CHLORINATOR
VENT FAN LOCATED HIGH
ON WALL

Active 06/12/2006 5

TD12 CL2 SWITCHED FOR FAN / LIGHTS NOT
OUTSIDE CL2 ROOM

MIN 2

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

TP002 WELL #2 CHLORINATOR Active 10/13/2009 2

V003 STORAGE FACILITY COVER NOT SLOPED FOR
DRAINAGE

MIN 10

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 6 of 7



 

Chemical Monitoring Rule Violations

 

 

Operator Certification Points

 

Facility Comments Status Determinated Point Not
Assessed

Point
Assessed

ST001 RESERVOIR #1 Active 10/13/2009 10

Total Effective Points: 33

Facility Violation
No. Period Violation Type Seasonality Point Effective

WS006 2015-
444381

01/01/2014-12/31/2014
Determined: 01/13/2015

[03] MONITORING, ROUTINE MAJOR
Analyte/Group: NITRATE

P 50

Total Effective Points: 50

Type Level Required Highest Certificate Point Effective
Distribution Dist 4 Dist 4 0
Treatment Treat 2 -20

Total Effective Points: -20

DEQ | Drinking Water

Run Date: 11/30/2015 15:51:51 | Rating: Approved UTAH25142 EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY page 7 of 7



Agenda Item 
4(C)(i)(d) 



Taylor-West Weber WID  

Presented to the Drinking Water Board  

January 8, 2016 

  

 

 

DRINKING WATER BOARD 

PACKET FOR CONSTUCTION LOAN 

 

 

 

 

APPLICANT’S REQUEST: 

 

Taylor-West Weber Water Improvement District (the District) was authorized funding 

last year for a new well, tank and transmission lines and are currently under construction.  

Their 50 year old existing well has had sand issues and has recently caved in, so the 

district is in immediate need of an additional water source. The District is requesting 

additional funding to drill and equip a new replacement well. The District scored 22.9 

points on the project priority list. 

 

The cost of the new well is $1,497,740 with an additional $145,744 if American Iron & 

Steel (AIS) and Davis-Bacon requirements are included (total being $1,643,514) 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS: 

 

The District has a local MAGI of $31,991, which is approximately 79% of the State’s 

MAGI of $40,489. Additionally the cost of the project would result in a water bill of 

$59.55, which is 2.23% of the local MAGI. Therefore the District qualifies for additional 

subsidization.   

 

If State funds are utilized, then staff recommends a loan of $1,198,000 and a grant of 

$299,740. If Federal SRF funds are utilized, then it would be a funding package of 

$1,643,514 with principle forgiveness of $329,514 where the repayable amount is 

$1,314,000 (equivalent to a loan of $1,314,000 and a grant of $329,514). The following 

tables summarizes the options. 

 

Fund Loan Grant Interest % MAGI 

State $1,198,000 $299,740 1.64% 2.24% 

Federal $1,314,000 $329,514 1.64% 2.25% 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Using State funds, the Drinking Water Board authorize a $1,198,000 construction 

loan at 1.64% interest or fee per annum for 30 years with a grant of $299,740 to the 

Taylor-West Weber Water Improvement District.   

 

 

 



Taylor-West Weber WID 

January 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

APPLICANT’S LOCATION:  

 

Taylor – West Weber WID is located in Weber County and Serves portions of West 

Haven, Hooper, and unincorporated portions of Weber county west of I-15 

 

 

MAP OF APPLICANT’S LOCATION: 

 

 
 



Taylor-West Weber WID 

January 8, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 

 

PLANNING DESCRIPTION/SCOPE OF WORK: 

 

The District’s existing well (drilled about 1965) has had sand issues historically and have 

become progressively worse. About 10 years ago a new screen was installed. Recently 

however the well has caved in and the District need a replacement well before summer 

peak conditions. 

 

           

 

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE: 

 

Drinking Water Board Authorization Dec 2015 

Commence Design Dec 2015 

Complete Design Dec 2015 

Receive DDW Plan Approval Feb 2016 

Advertise for Bids Feb 2016 

Bid Opening Feb 2016 

Loan Closing Mar 2016 

Begin Construction Mar 2016 

Complete Construction May 2016 

Receive Operating Permit Jun 2016 

  

  

 

COST ESTIMATE: 

 

Legal $40,000 

Engineering  $63,380 

Construction (Well) $900,000 

Construction (Well House) $367,600 

Contingency (10%) $126,760 

Total Cost: $1,497,740 

  

 

 

 

COST ALLOCATION: 

 

The cost allocation proposed for the project is shown below.   

 

Funding Source Cost Sharing  Percent of Project 

DWB Loan: $1,198,000  80% 

DWB Grant  $299,740  20% 

Total Amount: $1,497,740  100% 

 

 



Taylor-West Weber WID 

January 8, 2016 

Page 4 

 

 

 

APPLICANT:  Taylor-West Weber WID  

  2815 W 3300 S 

  West Haven, Utah 84401-9791 

     Telephone: 801-731-1668 

     Fax: 801-731-7799 

 

PRESIDING OFFICIAL &   

CONTACT PERSON:  Val Surrage, System Manager 

  2815 W 3300 S 

  West Haven, Utah 84401-9791 

     Telephone: 801-731-1668 

     Fax: 801-731-7799 

 

 

FINANCIAL CONSULTANT: Cody Deeter 

     Lewis, Young, Robertson & Burningham, Inc. 

  41 N Rio Grande, Ste 101 

  SLC, UT 84101 

     Telephone: 801-596-0700 

     Fax: 801-596-2800 

 

CITY ATTORNEY:   Mark Anderson 

     Fabian Law 

215 S State St., Ste 1200 

SLC, UT 84111 

Telephone: 801-323-2234 

Fax: 801-231-1716 

 

CONSULTING ENGINEER:  Dan White, P.E. 

     Gardner Engineering 

5150 S 375 E 

Ogden, Utah, 84405 

       Telephone: 801-476-0202 

Fax: 801-476-0066 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Taylor West Weber WID FUNDING SOURCE: State SRF

         COUNTY: Weber

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

80 % Loan & 20 % Grant

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 6,927 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 2013 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $35.46 * PROJECT TOTAL: $1,497,740

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.33% FINANCIAL PTS: 74 LOAN AMOUNT: $1,198,000

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $31,991 GRANT AMOUNT: $299,740

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $1,497,740

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 79%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.39% 0.12% ** 1.64%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 30 30 30 30

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.39% 0.12% 1.64%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $39,933.33 $72,598.11 $50,879.35 $50,879.35

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $3,993.33 $7,259.81 $5,087.93 $5,087.93

$21.82 $39.67 $27.80 $27.80

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $737,452.00 $737,452.00 $737,452.00 $737,452.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $583,937.50 $583,937.50 $583,937.50 $583,937.50

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $62,226.77 $63,860.01 $62,774.07 $62,774.07

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $687.34 $688.15 $531.79 $687.61

$1,427,542.93  $1,465,107.43   $1,070,483.57  $1,440,130.85

TAX REVENUE: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $59.10 $60.65 $46.63 $59.62

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 2.22%  2.28%   1.75% 2.24%

 

** Equiv. Ann. Payment (Loan $398,000 and Grant $27,050)

Tank, Transmission Line, New Well

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



R309-700-5
Taylor West Weber WID

Weber

January 14, 2015

TABLE 2
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

POINTS

1. COST EFFECTIVENESS RATIO (SELECT ONE)

A. Project cost $0 to $500 per benefitting connection 16

B. $501 to $1,500 14 X

C. $1,501 to $2,000 11

D. $2,001 to $3,000 8

E. $3,001 to $5,000 4

F. $5,001 to $10,000 1

G. Over $10,000 0

$744

2. CURRENT LOCAL MEDIAN ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (AGI) (SELECT ONE)

A. Less than 70% of State Median AGI 19

B. 71 to 80% of State Median AGI 16 X

C. 81 to 95% of State Median AGI 13

D. 96 to 110% of State Median AGI 9

E. 111 to 130% of State Median AGI 6

E. 131 to 150% of State Median AGI 3

F. Greater than 150% of State Median AGI 0

79%

3. PROJECT FUNDING CONTRIBUTED BY APPLICANT (SELECT ONE)

a. Greater than 25% of project funds 17

b. 15 to 25% of project funds 14

c. 10 to 15% of project funds 11

c. 5 to 10% of project funds 8

d. 2 to 5% of project funds 4

e. Less than 2% of project funds 0 X

0.0%

4. ABILITY TO REPAY LOAN

4. WATER BILL (INCLUDING TAXES) AFTER PROJECT IS BUILT RELATIVE TO LOCAL MEDIAN 

ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME (SELECT ONE) 

a. Greater than 2.50% of local median AGI 16

b. 2.01 to 2.50% of local median AGI 12 X

c. 1.51 to 2.00% of local median AGI 8

d. 1.01 to 1.50% of local median AGI 3

e. 0 to 1.00% of local median AGI 0

2.23%

5. SPECIAL INCENTIVE POINTS Applicant: (Mark all that apply)

A. has a replacement fund receiving annual deposits of 5% of the system's drinking water budget been 

established, and has already accumulated a minimum of 10% of said annual DW budget in this reserve 

fund. 5 X

B. Has a replacement fund equal to at least 15% or 20% of annual DW budget. 5 X

C. Is creating or enhancing a regionalization plan 16 X

D. Has a rate structure encouraging conservation 6 X

TOTAL POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 74

TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS FOR FINANCIAL NEED 100



Taylor West Weber WID

PROPOSED BOND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE 80 % Loan & 20 % Grant

PRINCIPAL $1,198,000         ANTICIPATED CLOSING DATE 01-Mar-16

INTEREST 1.64% P&I PAYMT DUE 01-Mar-17

TERM 30 REVENUE BOND

NOMIN. PAYMENT $50,879.35 GRANT AMOUNT: $299,740

BEGINNING DATE OF ENDING PAYM

YEAR BALANCE PAYMENT PAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST BALANCE NO.

====== ================ ================ ================ = ================== ================== ================= =====

2017 $1,198,000.00 $29,470.80 * $0.00 $29,470.80 $1,198,000.00 0

2018 $1,198,000.00 $50,647.20 $31,000.00 $19,647.20 $1,167,000.00 1

2019 $1,167,000.00 $51,138.80 $32,000.00 $19,138.80 $1,135,000.00 2

2020 $1,135,000.00 $50,614.00 $32,000.00 $18,614.00 $1,103,000.00 3

2021 $1,103,000.00 $51,089.20 $33,000.00 $18,089.20 $1,070,000.00 4

2022 $1,070,000.00 $50,548.00 $33,000.00 $17,548.00 $1,037,000.00 5

2023 $1,037,000.00 $51,006.80 $34,000.00 $17,006.80 $1,003,000.00 6

2024 $1,003,000.00 $50,449.20 $34,000.00 $16,449.20 $969,000.00 7

2025 $969,000.00 $50,891.60 $35,000.00 $15,891.60 $934,000.00 8

2026 $934,000.00 $51,317.60 $36,000.00 $15,317.60 $898,000.00 9

2027 $898,000.00 $50,727.20 $36,000.00 $14,727.20 $862,000.00 10

2028 $862,000.00 $51,136.80 $37,000.00 $14,136.80 $825,000.00 11

2029 $825,000.00 $50,530.00 $37,000.00 $13,530.00 $788,000.00 12

2030 $788,000.00 $50,923.20 $38,000.00 $12,923.20 $750,000.00 13

2031 $750,000.00 $51,300.00 $39,000.00 $12,300.00 $711,000.00 14

2032 $711,000.00 $50,660.40 $39,000.00 $11,660.40 $672,000.00 15

2033 $672,000.00 $51,020.80 $40,000.00 $11,020.80 $632,000.00 16

2034 $632,000.00 $51,364.80 $41,000.00 $10,364.80 $591,000.00 17

2035 $591,000.00 $50,692.40 $41,000.00 $9,692.40 $550,000.00 18

2036 $550,000.00 $51,020.00 $42,000.00 $9,020.00 $508,000.00 19

2037 $508,000.00 $51,331.20 $43,000.00 $8,331.20 $465,000.00 20

2038 $465,000.00 $50,626.00 $43,000.00 $7,626.00 $422,000.00 21

2039 $422,000.00 $50,920.80 $44,000.00 $6,920.80 $378,000.00 22

2040 $378,000.00 $51,199.20 $45,000.00 $6,199.20 $333,000.00 23

2041 $333,000.00 $50,461.20 $45,000.00 $5,461.20 $288,000.00 24

2042 $288,000.00 $50,723.20 $46,000.00 $4,723.20 $242,000.00 25

2043 $242,000.00 $50,968.80 $47,000.00 $3,968.80 $195,000.00 26

2044 $195,000.00 $51,198.00 $48,000.00 $3,198.00 $147,000.00 27

2045 $147,000.00 $50,410.80 $48,000.00 $2,410.80 $99,000.00 28

2046 $99,000.00 $50,623.60 $49,000.00 $1,623.60 $50,000.00 29

2047 $50,000.00 $50,820.00 $50,000.00 $820.00 $0.00 30

---------------------------- ------------------------------- --------------------------------

$1,555,831.60 $1,198,000.00 $357,831.60

*Interest Only Payment 



Taylor West Weber WID

DWB Loan Terms DW Expenses (Estimated) DW Revenue Sources (Projected)

Local Share (total): -$                   Proposed Facility Capital Cost: 1,497,740$     Beginning Cash: -$                   

Other Agency Funding: -$                   Existing Facility O&M Expense: 737,452$         Existing Customers (ERC): 2,013

DWB Grant Amount: 299,740$           Proposed Facility O&M Expense: 737,452$         Projected Growth Rate: 3.0%

DWB Loan Amount: 1,198,000$        O&M Inflation Factor: 1.0% Impact Fee/Connection Fee: 5,228$               

DWB Loan Term: 30                       Existing Debt Service: 467,150$        Current Monthly User Charge: 35.46$               

DWB Loan Interest: 1.64%  Needed Average Monthly User Charge: 59.62$               

DWB Loan Payment: 50,879$             

DW Revenue Projections

Growth Annual Total Existing Debt

Rate Growth Users User Charge Impact Fee Property Tax Total DWB Loan DWB Loan Remaining Principal Interest DW Debt O&M Total Service

Yr (%) (ERC) (ERC) Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Repayment Reserves Principal Payment Payment Service Expenses Expenses Ratio

0 3.0% 60 2,013 856,602 313,680           -                   1,170,282        -                        -                  1,198,000        -                   -                     467,150           737,452           1,204,602          -                     

1 3.0% 60 2,073 1,483,056 313,680           -                   1,796,736        50,647                  5,088               1,167,000        31,000             19,647                467,150           737,452           1,260,337          2.05                   

2 3.0% 63 2,136 1,528,127 329,364           -                   1,857,491        51,139                  5,088               1,135,000        32,000             19,139                467,150           744,827           1,268,203          2.15                   

3 3.0% 64 2,200 1,573,913 334,592           -                   1,908,505        50,614                  5,088               1,103,000        32,000             18,614                467,150           752,275           1,275,127          2.23                   

4 3.0% 66 2,266 1,621,131 345,048           -                   1,966,179        51,089                  5,088               1,070,000        33,000             18,089                467,150           759,798           1,283,125          2.33                   

5 3.0% 68 2,334 1,669,779 355,504           -                   2,025,283        50,548                  5,088               1,037,000        33,000             17,548                467,150           767,396           1,290,181          2.43                   

6 3.0% 70 2,404 1,719,858 365,960           -                   2,085,818        51,007                  5,088               1,003,000        34,000             17,007                467,150           775,069           1,298,314          2.53                   

7 3.0% 72 2,476 1,771,368 376,416           -                   2,147,784        50,449                  5,088               969,000           34,000             16,449                467,150           782,820           1,305,507          2.64                   

8 3.0% 74 2,550 1,824,309 386,872           -                   2,211,181        50,892                  5,088               934,000           35,000             15,892                467,150           790,648           1,313,778          2.74                   

9 3.0% 77 2,627 1,879,396 402,556           -                   2,281,952        51,318                  5,088               898,000           36,000             15,318                467,150           798,555           1,322,110          2.86                   

10 3.0% 78 2,705 1,935,198 407,784           -                   2,342,982        50,727                  5,088               862,000           36,000             14,727                467,150           806,540           1,329,506          2.97                   

11 3.0% 81 2,786 1,993,147 423,468           -                   2,416,615        51,137                  825,000           37,000             14,137                467,150           814,606           1,332,893          3.09                   

12 3.0% 84 2,870 2,053,242 439,152           -                   2,492,394        50,530                  788,000           37,000             13,530                467,150           822,752           1,340,432          3.23                   

13 3.0% 86 2,956 2,114,767 449,608           -                   2,564,375        50,923                  750,000           38,000             12,923                467,150           830,979           1,349,053          3.35                   

14 3.0% 89 3,045 2,178,439 465,292           -                   2,643,731        51,300                  711,000           39,000             12,300                467,150           839,289           1,357,739          3.48                   

15 3.0% 91 3,136 2,243,542 475,748           -                   2,719,290        50,660                  672,000           39,000             11,660                467,150           847,682           1,365,492          3.61                   

16 3.0% 94 3,230 2,310,791 491,432           -                   2,802,223        51,021                  632,000           40,000             11,021                467,150           856,159           1,374,330          3.76                   

17 3.0% 97 3,327 2,380,186 507,116           -                   2,887,302        51,365                  591,000           41,000             10,365                467,150           864,720           1,383,235          3.90                   

18 3.0% 100 3,427 2,451,728 522,800           -                   2,974,528        50,692                  550,000           41,000             9,692                  467,150           873,368           1,391,210          4.06                   

19 3.0% 103 3,530 2,525,416 538,484           -                   3,063,900        51,020                  508,000           42,000             9,020                  467,150           882,101           1,400,271          4.21                   

20 3.0% 106 3,636 2,601,250 554,168           -                   3,155,418        51,331                  465,000           43,000             8,331                  467,150           890,922           1,409,404          4.37                   

21 3.0% 109 3,745 2,679,230 569,852           -                   3,249,082        50,626                  422,000           43,000             7,626                  467,150           899,832           1,417,608          4.54                   

22 3.0% 112 3,857 2,759,357 585,536           -                   3,344,893        50,921                  378,000           44,000             6,921                  467,150           908,830           1,426,901          4.70                   

23 3.0% 116 3,973 2,842,345 606,448           -                   3,448,793        51,199                  333,000           45,000             6,199                  467,150           917,918           1,436,267          4.88                   

24 3.0% 119 4,092 2,927,479 622,132           -                   3,549,611        50,461                  288,000           45,000             5,461                  467,150           927,097           1,444,709          5.07                   

25 3.0% 123 4,215 3,015,475 643,044           -                   3,658,519        50,723                  242,000           46,000             4,723                  467,150           936,368           1,454,242          5.26                   

26 3.0% 126 4,341 3,105,617 658,728           -                   3,764,345        50,969                  195,000           47,000             3,969                  467,150           945,732           1,463,851          5.44                   

27 3.0% 130 4,471 3,198,621 679,640           -                   3,878,261        51,198                  147,000           48,000             3,198                  467,150           955,189           1,473,537          5.64                   

28 3.0% 135 4,606 3,295,203 705,780           -                   4,000,983        50,411                  99,000             48,000             2,411                  467,150           964,741           1,482,302          5.87                   

29 3.0% 138 4,744 3,393,930 721,464           -                   4,115,394        50,624                  50,000             49,000             1,624                  467,150           974,389           1,492,162          6.07                   

30 3.0% 142 4,886 3,495,519 742,376           -                   4,237,895        50,820                  -                   50,000             820                     467,150           984,133           1,502,103          6.28                   

Total Paid in Debt Service = 1,198,000        328,361             



DRINKING WATER BOARD FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE EVALUATION

SYSTEM NAME: Taylor West Weber WID FUNDING SOURCE: Federal SRF

         COUNTY: Weber

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

  

80 % Loan & 20 % P.F.

ESTIMATED POPULATION: 6,927 NO. OF CONNECTIONS: 2013 *  SYSTEM RATING: APPROVED

CURRENT AVG WATER  BILL: $35.46 * PROJECT TOTAL: $1,643,514

CURRENT % OF AGI: 1.33% FINANCIAL PTS: 74 LOAN AMOUNT: $1,314,000

ESTIMATED MEDIAN AGI: $31,991 PRINC. FORGIVENESS: $329,514

STATE AGI: $40,489 TOTAL REQUEST: $1,643,514

SYSTEM % OF STATE AGI: 79%

 @ ZERO %  @ RBBI EQUIVALENT AFTER REPAYMENT

RATE MKT RATE ANNUAL PAYMENT PENALTY & POINTS

0% 4.39% 0.12% ** 1.64%

SYSTEM

        ASSUMED LENGTH OF DEBT, YRS: 30 30 30 30

ASSUMED NET EFFECTIVE INT. RATE: 0.00% 4.39% 0.12% 1.64%

              REQUIRED DEBT SERVICE: $43,800.01 $79,627.66 $55,805.90 $55,805.90

           *PARTIAL COVERAGE (15%): $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

  *ADD. COVERAGE AND RESERVE (10%): $4,380.00 $7,962.77 $5,580.59 $5,580.59

$23.93 $43.51 $30.50 $30.50

 

               O & M + FUNDED DEPRECIATION: $737,452.00 $737,452.00 $737,452.00 $737,452.00

            OTHER DEBT + COVERAGE: $583,937.50 $583,937.50 $583,937.50 $583,937.50

        REPLACEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT: $62,420.10 $64,211.48 $63,020.40 $63,020.40

ANNUAL EXPENSES PER CONNECTION: $687.44 $688.33 $531.91 $687.73

$1,431,989.61  $1,473,191.41   $1,070,729.90  $1,445,796.39

TAX REVENUE: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

RESIDENCE

MONTHLY NEEDED WATER BILL: $59.28 $60.99 $46.87 $59.85

% OF ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME: 2.22%  2.29%   1.76% 2.25%

 

** Equiv. Ann. Payment (Loan $398,000 and Grant $27,050)

Tank, Transmission Line, New Well

* Equivalent Residential Connections

ANNUAL NEW DEBT PER CONNECTION:

TOTAL SYSTEM EXPENSES



Agenda Item 
6(A) 



OPERATOR CERTIFICATION COMMISSION 
 

 
 

Member 
 

 
 

Agency Represented 
 

 
 Date of 
 Original 
 Appointment 

 
 Term of 
 Office 
 Expires 

Quinn Fenton 
Orem City 
39 West 1790 North 
Genola, Utah  84655 
Phone:  (801) 229-7546 
Fax:  (801) 229-7599 

 
American Water Works 
Association – Distribution 

 
November 8, 2013 
 

 
December 31, 2016 

 
Mark Clark 
Weber Basin Water Conservancy District 
2837 East Highway 193 
Layton, Utah 84040 
Phone: 771-1677    
Fax:  (801) 544-0103 

 
American Water Works 
Association – Treatment 

 
January 1, 2001 

 
December 31, 2016 

 
Gary M. Larsen 
P.O. Box 72  
Millville, Utah  84326   
Phone:  (435) 750-0924                 

 
Rural Water Association of Utah 

 
January 1, 2007 

 
December 31, 2016 

 
Brett Chynoweth 
P.O. Box 1 
141 West 100 South 
Tropic, Utah  84776 
Phone:  (435) 689-8713 
Cell:  (435) 690-0563 

 
Drinking Water Board 

 
May 10, 2013   

 
December 31, 2016 

 
James Callison, Environmental Technology 
Utah Valley State College 
800 West 1200 South 
Orem, Utah 84058-5999     
Phone:  (801) 222-8000, x 8677    
Fax: (801) 226-5207  

 
Joint Training Coordinating 
Committee 

 
January 1, 1993 

 
December 31, 2017 

 
Dr. David K. Stevens 
Utah State University 
Department of Civil & Environmental 
Engineering 
Logan, Utah 84331-4110 
Phone:  (435) 797-3229    
Fax:  (435) 750-1185 

 
Higher Education 

 
January 1, 1987 

 
December 31, 2018 

 
Bart Simons 
Provo City 
1371 West 1730 North 
Provo, Utah 84604 
Phone:  852-6782    

Fax:  (801) 852-6778 

 
Utah League of Cities & Towns 

 
January 1, 1995 

 
December 31, 2018 

12/4/15 
Term is:  3 years 
OpCert 



Agenda Item 
6(B) 



Item_7(B)_governor's_2017_proposed_budget.xlsx  12/14/2015

Department of Environmental Quality
 Funding Requests/Reallocations

Priority Description Line Item
2016 

Supplemental
2017 One 

Time
2017 On 

Going Funding Source
2016 One 

Time 2017 One Time
2017 

Ongoing

DEQ Budget Requests - New Funds  Governor's 
Budget 

1 AQ Monitoring Equipment and Expanded 
Network

NABA 2,160,000       424,200        General Fund 2,160,000          424,200       

2 DW Operations/Sanitary Surveys NAFA 800,000        Restricted - Water Development Security Acct- DW 
Loan Program (5235) 800,000       

3 Spill Coordinator NAEA 120,900        General Fund

4 AQ Data System-Permitting NABA 1,500,000       50,000          General Fund

5 AQ Research NABA 425,000          General Fund 250,000             
8 CARROT NAKA 700,000          General Fund 500,000             

NAFA Restricted - Water Development Security Acct - 
Drinking Water Projects (5210) 1,000,000          

NAFA Restricted - Water Development Security Acct - 
Drinking Loan Fund (5235) 500,000             

NAFA 13,358,000     General Fund 4,000,000          

Budget Requests - Adjustments

NACA 133,400               133,400        Dedicated Credits          133,400         133,400 

NALA (133,400)              (133,400)       Dedicated Credits        (133,400)       (133,400)

NAAA 50,000                 50,000          General Fund            50,400           50,400 

NAAA 39,000                 39,000          Federal Funds            39,000           39,000 

NALA (50,000)                (50,000)         General Fund           (50,400)          (50,400)

NALA (39,000)                (39,000)         Federal Funds           (39,000)          (39,000)

HSMF - Superfund Match 2155 400,000          EQRA 400,000             
480 (55,300)                (55,300)         Federal Funds           (55,300) (55,300)        
480 28,000                 28,000          General Fund            28,000 28,000          
480 20,600                 20,600          Restricted - Various            20,600 20,600          
480 6,700                   6,700            Dedicated Credits              6,700 6,700            

Other

Technical Support Building 6,200,000       6,200,000          

Compensation 2% across the board, 0.75% targeted (6% for Engineer II, III, IV); fully fund state benefit increases; fund $26 bi-weekly 401(k) match

Drinking Water Use Study9

Attorney General Funding Source Adjustment  
(amounts and funding sources vary by division)

Move WIPP to ERR from WMRC

Move Radon Grant to EDO from WMRC


	Drinking Water Board Packet
	Agenda
	1-8-16_Agenda
	Agenda Item 3(A)
	Item_3(A)_11-13-15_DRAFT_Minutes
	Agenda Item 3(B)
	Item_3(B)_11-25-15 DRAFT Minutes
	Agenda Item 4(A)
	Item_4(A)_Status Report
	Agenda Item 4(B)
	Item_4(B)_PPL
	Agenda Item 4(C)(i)(a)
	Item_4(C)(i)(a)_BRWCD
	Agenda Item 4(C)(i)(b)
	Item_4(C)(i)(b)_Fairfield
	Agenda Item 4(C)(i)(c)
	Item_4(C)(i)(c)_Eagle_Mtn
	Agenda Item 6(A)
	Item_6(A)_12-4-15_Water_Operator_Certification_Commission
	Agenda Item 6(B)
	Item_6(B)_governor's_2017_proposed_budget
	Sheet1


